TO:

FROM

DATE:

RE:

Pima County Clerk of the Board

Julie Castafieda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
130 W, Congress, 5" Floor 1640 East Benson Highway
Melissa Manriquez Tucson, AZ 85701 Tucson, Arizona 85714
Deputy Clerk Phone: (520)724-8449 « Fax: (520) 222-0448 Phone: {520) 351-8454 » Fax: (520) 791-6666
MEMORANDUM

Honorable Chairman and Board Members o
Pima County Board of Supervisors & PN
-

(“‘. c.‘:)"‘(
: Julie Castarfieda, Clerk of the Bafa—u§< '

December 17, 2019

Petition for Relief of Real Property Taxes — BASIS Schools, Inc.

Pursuantto A.R.S. §42-11104(G), BASIS Schools, Inc., filed a petition on November 6, 2019,
for relief of their Real Property Taxes as follows:

1.

Parcel No. 220-08-4710 (formally Parcel No. 220-08-463B, parent} — Tax Years 2014
and 2015. See attached spreadsheet for exemption request and impact.

The Assessor's review of this property indicates that the petition would have been
granted pending certificate of occupancy (property was purchased December 9,
2013). Attached is the certificate of occupancy issued November 20, 2014.

Additional information regarding this property indicates that in 2014, Parcel No. 220-
08-463B was taxed as land only, there were no improvements on the property. And,
in 2015 the parcel became 220-08-4710 and the property was taxed for land and
improvements.

Parcel No. 125-10-018A — Tax Years 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019. See attached
spreadsheet for exemption request and impact.

The Assessor's review for 2016, 2017, and 2018, indicates that the Assessor would
not have granted the exemption because the property was not being used for the
exempt purpose during the time period required by statute. The parcel was vacant
land (Class 2) in 2016, 2017, and 2018. Also, the facility did not furnish the required
documentation requested by the Assessor at the time of application per A. R.S. §42-
11152(A) (3) & (B).
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The Assessor’s review for 2019 indicates that had the affidavit been filed in a timely
manner the Assessor's Office would have granted the exemption. Parcel was
purchased in April 2016.

/ic
Attachments
- Basis Charter Schools Request for Exemption Spreadsheet
- Notice of Hearing
- Treasurer's Tax Reports
- Assessor's Review Forms
- Basis Schools Inc. submission
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Pima Cdunty Clerk of the Board

Julie Castafieda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
130 W. Congress, 5" Floor 1640 East Banson Highway

Tucson, AZ 85701 Tucson, Arizona 85714

Phone: {520) 351-8454 « Fax: (520) 791-6666

December 12, 2019

BASIS Schools, Inc.

c/o Warren Charter Law

Attn: Terry D. Warren

7702 E. Doubletree Ranch Road, Suite 300
Scottsdale, AZ 85258

RE: Petition for Relief of Taxes — Parcel Nos. 220-08-463B, 220-08-4710, and 125-10-
018A

Dear Mr. Warren:

Please be advised that your Petition for Relief of Real Property Taxes for tax years 2014,
2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019, has been scheduled before the Pima County Board
of Supervisors on Tuesday, December 17, 2019, at 9:00 a.m., or thereafter, at the
following location:

Pima County Administration Building
Board of Supervisors Hearing Room
130 West Congress, 1st Floor
Tucson, AZ 85701

If you have any questions regarding this hearing, please contact this office at 724-8449.

RN

Julie Castarfieda
Clerk of the Board

Sincerely,

~.

fic
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PIMA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE

Beth Ford, CPA
Pima County Treasurer

BASIS SCHOOLS INC
7975 N HAYDEN RD STE B121
SCOTTSDALE AZ 85258-3248

PAID BY: DTAX Batch
PROPERTY LOCATION: 3740 E SPEEDWAY BL

TOTAL TAX: 3,542.59

240 North Stone Avenue
Tucson AZ, 85701-1199
(520) 724-8341

REDEMPTION PAYMENT

PAYMENT DETAIL

PROPERTY TYPE: Real Estate

Receipt Certificate Tax Instail Payment

No. No State Code Year No. Payment Description Date Payment
6486259 1803225 12510018A 2016 1 Redemption Fee Payment 02/08/2019 10.00
6486259 1803225 12510018A 2016 1 Assignee Interest Payment 02/08/2019 173.75
6486259 1803225 12510018A 2016 1 Redemption Payment 02/08/2019 4,343.77
6486259 1803225 12510018BA 2117 1 Assignee Interest Payment 02/08/2019 2517
6486259 1803225 12510018A 2017 1 Redemption Payment 02/08/2019 3,776.24
Total Payment $ 8,328.93

THERE WILL BE A 525 CHARGE FOR EACH RETURNED CHECK
AND THE ACCOUNT WILL REVERT TO AN UNPAID STATUS

00BEE342 D03C256B A

Thank you for your payment!

Fax

(620) 724-4809
www_to.pima.gov



a PIMA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE

Beth Ford, CP 240 North Stone Avenue
m Pima C ’ ¢ .'f Tucson AZ, 85701-1199
ima couniy ireasurer (520) 724-8341

PIMA COUNTY TAX RECEIPT

BASIS SCHOOLS INC
7975 N HAYDEN RD STE B121
SCOTTSDALE AZ 85258-3248

PAID BY: BASIS SCHOOLS INC PROPERTY TYPE: Real Estate
PROPERTY LOCATION: 3740 E SPEEDWAY BL
TOTAL TAX: § 3,307.48

PAYMENT DETAIL

Receipt Tax Install Payment

No. State Code Year No. Payment Description Date Payment
6486252 12510018A 2018 1 Tax Payment 02/08/2019 1,653.74
6486252 12510018A 2018 1 Interest Payment 02/08/2019 88.20
Total Payment $1,741.94
Remaining Amount $0.00

THERE WILL BE A $25 CHARGE FOR EACH RETURNED CHECK
AND THE ACCOUNT WILL REVERT TO AN UNPAID STATUS

Thank you for your payment!

00BEE342 003C2524 A Fax  (520)724-4809
www.lo.pima.gov






a PIMA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE

m Beth Ford, CPA
Pima County Treasurer

BASIS SCHOOLS INC
7975 N HAYDEN RD STE B121
SCOTTSDALE AZ 85258-3248

PAID BY: Lockbox

PROPERTY LOCATICN: 3740 E SPEEDWAY BL

TOTAL TAX: §3,307.48

240 North Stone Avenue
Tucson AZ, 85701-1199
(520) 724-8341

PIMA COUNTY TAX RECEIPT

PAYMENT DETAIL

PROPERTY TYPE: Real Estate

Receipt Tax Install Payment
No. State Code Year No. Payment Description Date Payment
6812652 12510018A 2018 2 Tax Payment 06/21/2019 1,653.74
6812652 12510018A 2018 2 Interest Payment 06/21/2019 4410
Total Payment $1,697.84
Remaining Amount $ 0.00
Remaining amount does NOT include interest, penalties or other charges on delinguent taxes.
Please call the Treasurer's Office at 520-724-8341 for payoff amount.
THERE WILL BE A $25 CHARGE FOR EACH RETURNED CHECK
AND THE ACCOUNT WILL REVERT TO AN UNPAID STATUS
Thank you for your payment!
Fax (520) 724-4809

00BEE342 010B7C57 A

www.to.pima.gov
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Q PIMA COUNTY TREASURER'S OFFICE
240 North Stone Avenue

m Beth Ford, CPA Tucson AZ, 85701-1199
Pima County Treasurer (520) 724-8341

ACCOUNT BALANCE

BASIS SCHOOLS INC
7975 N HAYDEN RD STE B121
SCOTTSDALE AZ 85258-3248

ACCOUNT: 12510018A

PROPERTY TYPE: Real Estate

PROPERTY LOCATION: 3740 E SPEEDWAY BL

LEGAL DESC: PTN W145' E760.10' $115' N165' NE4 NE4

.38 AC SEC 9-14-14

Account Balance as of November 8, 2019

Tax Year | Cert No Interest Date Interest Amount Interest Fees Due | Penalties Total Due
Percent Due Due
2019 -1 11/2/2019 16.0 1,690.73 2254 0.00 0.00 1,713.27
2018-2 5/2/2020 16.0 1,690.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,690.73
Totals $3,381.46 $22.54 $0.00 $0.00 $3,404.00

If you have any questions about the items on this statement, please contact our offices.

Fax (520) 724-4809
www.to.pima.gov



Pima County Clerk of the Board

Julie Castaneda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
130 W. Congress, 5™ Floor 16406 East Benson Highway
Melissa Manriquez Tucson, AZ B5701 Tucsen, Arizona 85714
Deputy Clerk Phone: (520)724-84409 « Fax: (520) 222-0448 Phone: (520} 351-8454 » Fax: (520) 791-6666
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Petition to the Board of Supervisors - Review Form

Pursuant to _E AR.S. §42-11104(G) (educational/library property) or
1 AR.S. §42-11109(E) (religious property)

Taxpayer Basis School Inc

For tax year(s) 2016 - Parcel No. 125-10-018A

1) Did the organization file an affidavit as required by A.R.S. §42-111537?
B Yes 0O No

2) Was the affidavit filed on or before March 1 of the tax year as required by A.R.S.
§42-11153?
E Yes O No

3) If the affidavit had been filed timely, would the Assessor have granted the
exemption?
O Yes _BEl No

4) If the answer to Number 3 is “No”, why was the exemption denied?

The required ownership of the property was not in effect during the time
period required by statute.

_Bl  The property was not being used for the exempt purpose during the time
period required by statute.

The requesting church, educational or library property did not furnish the

required documents requested by the Assessor at the time of application

per A.R.S. §42-11152(3)&(B)

B  Other:

PARCEL WAS VACANT LAND (CLASS 2} IN 2016 TAX YEAR. PERMIT PULLED 2016

APPEARS NOT COMPLETE UNTIL OCTOBER 2018

Completed by: _RIANNA LARSEN Date: 12/09/2019

c: Honorable Bill Staples, Pima County Assessor



Pima County Clerk of the Board

Julie Castafeda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
130 W. Congress, 5" Floor 1640 East Benson Highway
Melissa Manriquez Tucson, AZ 85701 Tucson, Arizona 85714

Deputy Clerk Phone: (520)724-8449 » Fax: (520) 222-0448 Phone: (520) 351-8454 + Fax: (520) 791-B666
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Petition to the Board of Supervisors - Review Form

Pursuant to B AR.S. §42-11104(G) (educational/library property) or
] A.R.S. §42-11109(E) (religious property)

Taxpayer Basis School Inc

For tax year(s) 2017 - Parcel No. 125-10-078A

1) Did the organization file an affidavit as required by A.R.S. §42-111537
B Yes O No

2) Was the affidavit filed on or before March 1 of the tax year as required by A.R.S.
§42-111537
[ Yes I No

3) If the affidavit had been filed timely, would the Assessor have granted the
exemption?
_[O Yes _RE No

4) If the answer to Number 3 is “No”, why was the exemption denied?

O The required ownership of the property was not in effect during the time
period required by statute.

E  The property was not being used for the exempt purpose during the time
period required by statute.

B The requesting church, educational or library property did not furnish the
required documents requested by the Assessor at the time of application
per A R.S. §42-11152(3)&(B)

B Other

PARCEL WAS VACANT LAND (CLASS 2} IN 2017 TAX YEAR. PERMIT PULLED 2016

APPEARS NOT COMPLETE UNTIL OCTOBER 2018

Completed by: RIANNA LARSEN Date: 12/09/2019

c: Honorable Bill Staples, Pima County Assessor



Pima County Clerk of the Board

Julie Castaneda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
130 W. Congress, 5" Floor 1840 East Benson Highway
Melissa Manriquez Tucson, AZ 85701 Tucson, Arizona 85714

Deputy Clerk Phone: {520)724-8449 » Fax: (520) 222-0448 Phone: (520) 351-8454 « Fax: (520) 791-6666

Pursuant to Bl AR.S. §42-11104(G) (educational/library property) or
[0 A.R.S. §42-11109(E) (religious property)

Taxpayer Basis School Inc

For tax year(s) 2018-Parcel No. 125-10-018A

1) Did the organization file an affidavit as required by A.R.S. §42-111537
H Yes O No

2) Was the affidavit filed on or before March 1 of the tax year as required by A.R.S.
§42-111537
[ Yes [ No

3) If the affidavit had been filed timely, would the Assessor have granted the
exemption?
O Yes _E No

4) If the answer to Number 3 is “No”, why was the exemption denied?

O The required ownership of the property was not in effect during the time
period required by statute.

El The property was not being used for the exempt purpose during the time
period required by statute.

B The requesting church, educational or library property did not furnish the
required documents requested by the Assessor at the time of application
per A.R.S. §42-11152(3)&(B)

E Other

PARCEL WAS VACANT LAND (CLAS5 2) IN 2018 TAX YEAR. PERMIT PULLED 2016

APPEARS NGT COMPLETE UNTIL OCTOBER 2018

Completed by: RIANNA LARSEN Date: 12/09/2019

C: Honorable Bill Staples, Pima County Assessor



Pima County Clerk of the Board

Julie Castafeda

Administration Division Management of Information & Records Division
) 130 W. Congress, 5" Floor 1640 East Benson Highway
Melissa Manriquez Tucson, AZ 85701 Tucson, Arizona 85714

Deputy Clerk Phone: (520)724-8449 « Fax: (520) 222-0448 Phone: (520) 351-8454 « Fax: (520} 791-6666
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Petition to the Board of Supervisors - Review Form

Pursuant to _H AR.S. §42-11104(G) (educational/library property) or
I AR.S. §42-11109(E) (religious property)

Taxpayer Basis School Inc

For tax year(s) 2019 - Parcel No. 125-10-018A

1) Did the organization file an affidavit as required by A.R.S. §42-111537
B Yes O No

2) Was the affidavit filed on or before March 1 of the tax year as required by A.R.S.
§42-111537
[ Yes 0 No

3) If the affidavit had been filed timely, would the Assessor have granted the
exemption?
[ Yes _[OJ No

4) If the answer to Number 3 is “No”, why was the exemption denied?

O The required ownership of the property was not in effect during the time
period required by statute.

0 The property was not being used for the exempt purpose during the time
period required by statute.

O The requesting church, educational or library property did not furnish the
required documents requested by the Assessor at the time of application
per A.R.S. §42-11152(3)&(B)

O Other:

Completed by: RIANNA LARSEN Date: Nov 26,2019

c Honorable Bill Staples, Pima County Assessor



Melissa Whitne! ) _

From: Terry Warren <twarren@warrencharterlaw.com>
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2019 8:14 AM

To: COB_mail '

Subject: ' RE: BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. - Property Tax Appeals

&k k ok ok ok Kk

This message and sender come from outside Pima County. If you did not expect this
message, proceed with caution. Verify the sender's identity before performing any action,

such as clicking on a link or opening an attachment.
LERE X T RN

Julie:

You asked me to provide you with the “specific” years BASIS Charter Schools is requesting relief
from property taxes. ‘

We believe that the county has assessed property taxes on parcel number 125-10-018A for tax years
2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019. BASIS purchased parcel number 125-10-018A on April 29, 2016 and
has used the parcel for educational purposes since the purchase date (first to develop the parking lot
and, after development, for staff parking). BASIS is asking for property tax exemption on and after
April 29, 2016, and contlnumg until such time as BASIS may sell the parcei.

With respect to parcel number 220-08-4710, we believe that the county has assessed property taxes

for the tax year 2015. This parcel has been tax exempt from 2016 and continuing. However, the

county also assessed taxes on the parcel as parcel number 220-08-463B. The county websites do

not allow us to review this parcel number. However, BASIS purchased the parcei December 19, 2013
and we believe the county assessed taxes on this prior parcel number for 2013 and 2014.

To answer your question specifically, we think the information above is accurate, but the specific
request is to exempt the parcels from property taxes on and after the date BASIS acquired title to the
parcels. So for parcel 125-10-018A, the request is to exempt the parcel on and after April 29, 2016, }
and for parcel 220-08-4710 (under any parcel number, including 220-08-463B), the request is to ?

exempt the parcel on and after December 19, 2013.

| hope this helps. Let me know if you have further questions. Thank you.

Terry

Terry Warren

Warren Charter Law, PLC

7702 East Doubletree Ranch Road, Suite 300
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258

Tel: 480-222-2045ext 2

Cell: 480-818-2448

Email: twarren@warrencharterlaw.com



WARREN CHARTER [AW

November 3, 2019

YIA EMAIL

Ms. Julie Castaneda

Clerk of the Board

Pima County Board of Supervisors
130 West Congress Street, Fifth Floor
Tucson, Arizona 85701

RE: BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.: Petition for Relief Under A.R.S. §42-11104(G)

Dear Ms. Castaneda:

This firm represents BASIS Charter Schools, Inc., an Arizona nonprofit corporation
formerly known as BASIS Schools, Inc. (“BASIS”). BASIS has been granted tax-exempt status
under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). A copy of BASIS’ Federal 501(c)(3) income tax
exemption letter from the IRS is attached. A copy of BASIS’ charter school contract with the
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools is also attached.

BASIS previously applied for a property-tax exemption for assessor parcel number 125-
10-018A, located at 3740 East Speedway Boulevard, Tucson, Arizona (the “Property™),
requesting exemption on and after BASIS’ acquisition date of April 29, 2016 (sce attached
Special Warranty Deed).

Notwithstanding the request for exemption, BASIS received a notice from the Pima
County Treasurer’s office, enclosed for your reference, that indicates that the Property has
delinquent taxes and is subject to sale if the taxes are not paid immediately. Further, in a phone
call on Febrnary 5, 2019, the Pima County Assessor’s office advised that a lien for this Property
has been sold and the Property is subject to foreclosure in February of 2020.

Upon learning of the tax-lien, BASIS contacted me and I immediately began working
with the Pima County Assessor to remedy the situation. Since that time, I have talked with, and
emailed, at least five employees at the assessor’s office and made no less than eight telephone
calls to these individuals. Each time the employee assured me that he or she would look into the
matter and that either they or their supervisor would return my call. After waiting weeks for a
return call, I would call again and review the entire sitvation with another assessor employee. 1
have only ever received one return phone call; that call was from Ms. Susan Shettleroe.

7702 Fast Doubletree Ranch Road, Suite 300 | Scottsdale, Arizona 85258 | 480.222.2045 | 866.790.1797 | FAX 480.222.2044

www.warrencharterlaw.com




Ms. Julie Castaneda

Clerk of the Board

Pima County Board of Supervisors
November 3, 2019

Page 2

I have also talked on two occasions with the Pima County Treasurer’s office and I have
talked with and emailed the Pima County Attorney’s office. In addition, I have sent a letter to the
Pima County Assessor’s Office explaining the situation and requesting correction. I have
attached that letter for your reference.

The result of each of my calls with the Pima County Assessor’s office was typically that
the employee would review the situation and find a resolution. However, to BASIS® knowledge
the exemption has not been granted and the Property is still classified “Commercial (1).”

While talking with Mr. Andrew Flagg at the Pima County Attorney’s office about a
different parcel, we also discussed this sitnation. Mr. Flagg suggested this appeal.

To review, BASIS is a tax-exempt, nonprofit corporation that operates charter schools in
Arizona. Under applicable Arizona law, specifically, A.R.S. §42-11104.C, “Property and
buildings, including land, improvements, furniture and equipment, that are owned by a nonprofit
organization that is recognized under section 501(c)(3) of the internal revenue code and that
operates as: 1. A charter school pursuant to section 15-183 are exempt from taxation beginning
on the date the nonprofit organization acquires ownership of the property and buildings if the
property and buildings are used for education and are not used or held for profit” (emphasis
added).

BASIS acquired the Property on April 29, 2016. BASIS has used the Property for
educational purposes since the date of acquisition, first for development of parking facilities for
its charter school and then for staff parking. 1t is worth noting that BASIS purchased and
developed this additional parking, in part, to satisfy Clty of Tucson requests to add additional
parking for the charter school.

BASIS filed an application for property tax exemption for the Property, enclosed for your
reference. Although BASIS believes an application for exemption was filed in late 2016, the
assessor’s office denies receiving the application. Accordingly, BASIS re-filed an application in
early 2019, requesting a property tax exemption from and after April 29, 2016 as permitted by
law.

Accordingly, the Property should be property tax exempt on and after April 29, 2016.
Indeed, as noted, I have had numerous conversations with the Pima County Assessor’s office
regarding the property tax-exempt status of the Property. Despite these communications attempts
to collect taxes continue and have now escalated to the sale of a lien. '

Regardless of the reason for the lack of tax exemption, Arizona law specifies that “If a

nonprofit organization described under subsection C of this section that holds title to property
used primarily for education fails to file the affidavit required by section 42-11152 in a timely

www.warrencharéerlaw,com



Ms, Julie Castaneda

Clerk of the Board

Pima County Board of Supervisors
November 3, 2019

Page 3

manner, but otherwise qualifies for exemption, the county is required to “Forgive and strike off
from the tax roll any property taxes and accrued interest and penalties that are due but not paid”
(see A.R.S. 2142-11104.G.2).

Accordingly, BASIS respectfully requests that the Pima County Board of Supervisor’s
direct: (i) the Pima County Assessor’s office to grant a full property tax exemption on the
Property on and after April 29, 2016; and (ii) the Pima County Treasurer’s office to eliminate the
tax lien on the Property, recover the tax lien from the purchaser and clear any issues related to
property taxes on the Property.

I have attached some of the correspondence with the Pima County Assessor for your
reference. Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you for your time and
consideration.

Sincerely,

Terry D. Warren

Enclosures

www.warrencharterlaw.com






NON-PROFIT AND RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS

Property Tax Information and Questionnaire form

QUESTIONNAIRE FOR PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION
ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED TO BE CONSIDERED FOR EXEMPTION

1. Name & Address of Organization:

f;f-\"/)l‘_) Colnariexs "‘)c,e\ne»r\(-‘-) Tne.
415 N. Hovyden Road, Sake 2]
%a scale, N7 #5256

2. Under which section of Title 42, Chapter 11, Article 3 does your organization claim

exemption? | i LY. ¢
(Arizona Revised Statutes can be found at: www. azieg gov)

3. Are there any type of business activities such as snack bars, cafés or restaurants operating
on the premises? Yes [ No

4. Is the organization exempt from Federal and/or State income taxes?
Yes_ K] No__ [0

5. Is the Organization a 501 (C)? Yes_ R which type .% . No_ [

5. Give day, month, and year deed/title was acquired by applicant.
Day’] & Month_ Year_ZOi(p

6. Claimant is: Owner/Operator E Owneronly [l  Operatoronly [

7. Exemption is claimed on:
All land E. Buildings & Improvements E Personal Property [ﬂ

ol

8. Is any portion of the property used as a place of residence? Yes 1 No M
If yes, state number of individuals occupying the premises and the duration of the
occupancy.

9. Does applicant receive any 1ncome other than free will offerings in connection with this

property) Yes B No O A to Lrom e, Stede o€ Azena

Ft% cant’s ch 5 car*ter School Centract:
10. Is any portlon of the property bemg leased or rented to a non-profit and/or a for- profit
organization(s)? Yes_ [0 = No_ & . Ifyes, please list the name(s) of the

organization(s)

11. List date of occupancy: Month _ Hf Day ‘29¥  Year ZCOl(2.




2019
EXEMPTION TYPE: M(Qﬁﬁ)mapaﬁtdmﬁerﬂm[#mmw FOR ORGANIZATIONAL TAX EXEMPTION
Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 42-11101 through 42-11155

ORGANIZATION NAME: iélﬂ ﬁ lfz { ,dh ﬁ_.]fkﬁ{
Seleols , Ine

Mailing Address:

1415 N, /‘1"& den Koad
Swate B 121 '
Seottsdale, AZ 85259

EXEMPTION TYPE:
RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATION | [T]| NON.PROFIT ORGANIZATION O
CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION | 7] | EDUCATIONAL PROPERTY g
VETERANS ORGANIZATION | L] | CEMETERY
OTHER {SPECIFY TYPE) E Charter S he ﬂ& Kl

CONTACT INFORMATION  {Address if different than Applicant)

NAME: T@W\; \,d ,»u—reﬂ (= 7&\\“:0??00\

ADDRESS:

iﬂ!:. E! . a ]STATE A.% ZIPCODE 6‘2"‘?)

TELEPHONE # FOR APPLICANT: L{a’ﬂ 2L ’Zoq,s

Contact Emall*-ﬁ'wm 4\@ f}UL’UNWt\ ftf“"-’-( ‘au_ﬂc})

i

NOTES: (. 2 it 2l
/

Nicholas Stewart
Notary Public
Maricopa County, Adzona
/' My Comm. Exp, 10-30-2020

NOTE: SIGNATURE MUST BE NOTARIZED OR SIGNED IN THE
PRESENCE OF ASSESSOR'S OFFICE PERSONNEL

(A) PROPERTY LIST

{B) LISTUSAGE

v earional

Ati real ond Pex'soa\@\ i‘) mbbe,r-\-u,a

STATE OF ARIZONA / PIMA COUNTY

| HEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT IHAVE ™™~ _ ?L,LW\ Qe A z\,a,\.( -5 289

READ OVER THE FOREGOING FACTS BEFORE SUBSCRIBING MY
NAME HERETO AND THAT ALL MATTERS HEREIN STATED ARE
TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

Pw DATE
x /9 _ 1&%@@

DEPUTY ASSESSOR /NOTARY ~ COMMISSION EXPIRES
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",. fbﬁe.» /BEquests, legacies,
,i8te deductible for fedesrl dstate and gigd

l

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
DISTRICT DIRECTOR

P. 0. BOX 2508
CINCTRNATI, OH 45201

Date: HDV 1 8 ms

BASIE BCHOOL, INC.
€740 CAILE DE CALIPSO
TUCSON, AZ B5715-2083

Déur Applicant:

DERRRTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
86-050R054
DIN:
17b53232021008
Contact Persom:
EO0 COSTOMER SERVICE
Contact ‘Teleghone Mumber:
{213) 8s84-2a89¢
Acoounting Pariocd Ending:
‘Decenber 31
Form 990 Required:

yas
hddendim Applies:
no

Baced on information ewppliéd, and aspuming your opexaticns will be as
stared in your applicaticn for recognition of exempticon, we have determined
you axe oxempt from federal income tax under secticm 501 (a) of the Interpal
Revenve Code az an orgepization described in section 501(c) (3).

We heve further determined that you axe not a private foundation within

the weaning of sectlon 509(a) of the Code, because you are amn erganization

described in gections 505 (a) {1) and 170{b) {1} (B} {i1).

If your sources of support,. or your purposes, Cheracter, or method of
cperation change, pleage let na know so we can consider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundation status.

In the case of an smend-

went te your organizational document or bylews, please send us a copy of the
amended document or bylaws.

name or address.

As of January 1, 1584, you are lisble for taxes under the Federal

Insursnce Contributions Act (socinl seocurity taxes) on remuteratiom of $100

or mora you pay to each of your employees during a calemdar yeaxr. 7You are

neot liable for tbe tax iwmposed under the Foderal Unemployment 'ra.x het (FUTA) .

Rleo, you should inform us of all changes in your

e you are mot.a:private foundation, you ava not ll.lb;‘ er. to the excise
aaxes:-alﬁ;er Chaptex 4z ofvthe Code. However, df ybu 4re involVed in an excess

Jpenefis, Bradgaction, hat transaction might ¥e
J\ﬂaitidnally, you are uot autehitically
 ‘federal miae taxzs. If you have any guests .about exc e, employment, or

sgc,t.ion 4556 .

other ..‘.aﬂ.-.::al ta:aea, pleaee gontact your i:e'y district pff:u;
f i g

LERs, r.:ansfe::

.applicable provielone of';t:oda sections 2055 2105, end 2522.

Uont:ibut.ion deducﬁa
their Buntr.i.butinna ara gi

-

gubject to the excise toxes-of
. £rom other

& way deduu: aontri.hutiuns to ygu ge provided in section 1707of the
or gifts tov you or fof your use”
purpoges if they meet u!:e

are allovablé ‘I:b donors only to the extent thaf.f
ts, -with no stnsideration received.
cheees and s:i.m:.lz{r paymenta in mjunati.m with Fundraising - evpnl:s may not..

. o
!

Ticket pur=y.

";',.
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BASIS SCEQOL, INC.

nscessarily gqualify as deductible contributionn, depending en the eircum-
stancec. Bee Revenue Ruling 67-248, published in Cumulative Bulletin 1567-2,
on page 104, which pets forth guidelines regarding the deductibility, as’chari-
table contributions, of payments made by taxpayers for admispion to or other
participation in fundraising activities for charity.

In the heading of this letter we have indicated whether you must f£ile Porm
950, Return of Orgamization Exempt From Income Tex. If Yes is indicated, you
are required to f£ile Form S50 anly if your gross receipts oach yemr are
normally more than $25,000, Howevex, if you receive & Form 990 package in the
mall, plemce file the retuwn even if ymu do nct exceed the gross reveipts test.
If you are not reguired to file, simply mAttech the label provided, check the
box in the heading to indicate that your amnual gross xeceipte are mormelly
525,000 or less, end olgn the return.

If a return is required, it must be f£iled by the 15th day of the fifth
month after the end of your ennudl acceunting peried. A penalty of $20 a day
is charged vhen a return is filed latq, uniess there is reasenable cause for
the delay. However, the maximum penalty charged ceannot exceed £10,000 or
5 percent of your gross receipts for the yeex, vhichever is less. For
organizations with gross receipts exceeding $1,000,000 in any year, the peualty
is 5100 pexr day per return, esg there is reasonable cazuse for the delay.

The maximum penslty for &n organization with gross recelpts exceeding
§1,000,000 shall not exceed $50,000. This penalty mey alap be charged if a
return ig oot complete, So be sure your return is complete before you file it,

You are zequired to make your anmual return available for public
inspeotion for thres ysars after the return is dua. You are also regquired
to make available a copy of your exemption epplioation, amy supporting
documents, and this exemprtien letrer. Fallure to make these documents
available for public inspection may subject you to a penmlty of §20 per day
for each dsy thexe ip 2 fzilure to cooply {up to a maxioum af £10,000 in the
case of gn anmuel return).

You are not required to file federml imcome tax returne unless you are
subject to the tax on unrelated business income vnder section 511 of the Code,
If you aras subject to this tux, you must file an income tax return on Form
990-T, Exempt Organisatien Business Income Tax Return. In this letter we are
not determining whether any of your present or proposed ‘agtivities are unre-
lated trade or businese as defined in paction 513 of the Code.

You need an employer identification number even if you have-no employees,
If an employer ideptification number was not emtered on your application, a
number will be assigned to you and you will be advised '9f it. ¥Flease use that
nunber on all returns yon file and in all corzrespondence with the Internsl
Rovenue Sorvice.

In accordance with section 508 (a) of the cdda. the effective date of this
determinztion letter is March 24, 195B.

-
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BASYS BCHOOL, INC.

If we have indicated in the heading of this letter that an addendum
applies, the snoulosed sddendum is an intesral part of this letter.

Because this letter could help resclve any questions about your exempt
status and foundation status, you shouid keep it in your permament records,

If you havd any guestions, please oontect the person whose name and
telephene numbex are shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincevely Yours,

N & fom

District Director

Letter. 547 {DD/Cq)






Renewal Charter Contract
Between
Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
And
BASIS School, Inc.

1. Partles: The Arizona State Board for Charter Schools is authorized, pursuant to Arizona Revised
Statutes (*A.R.8."), Title 16, Chapter 1, Arlicla 8, to execuie a Charter Contract (“Charier”) for the
purpoese of authorizing the renewal of established charter schools that provide a learning
environment to improve pupl achlevement and to provide addifional academic choices for parents
and pupils,

A,

Thig Charter Is entered into between BASIS School, Ing. ("Charter Holder") and the
Arizona State Board for Chatter Schools for the purpose of continuiing the opetation of a
charter school at the site(s) listed in Paragraph 6 of this Charler.

The person authorized to sign and act on behalf of the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schoole is the President of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools or its Executive
Director as the President’s Dasignee,

The pereon authorized to sign on behalt of the Charter Holder is Michae! Block, Cralg
Barrett, Kristen Jordison, and Carolyn McGarvey (“Charter Representative”),

The Charter Represertative affirme as a condition of this Charter, that he/she e the
ahove-described representative of the Charter Holder and has authority to enter into this
Charter on behalf of the Charler Holder.

The Charter Molder must maintein a Charter Representative and provide contact
information to the Arizona State Board for Charter Sghools.

The Arizona State Board for Chanter Schoola shail direct all communication with regard to
this Charter io the Charter Representative,

The Charter Representailve shall respond to written communication from the Arizona
State Board for Charter Schools within the timeframe specified in the communication.

Neither party to this Charter ia the employae or agent of the other party.

Attachment A, incorporated herein by referencs, is a copy of a resoiution or minutes of a
meeting of the board of directors of a corporate entity or a public body, or a written
agreement by the membaers or managers of a limited liability company or partnership
authorizing the Charter Representative to slgn documants, including this Charter, on
behalf of the Charter Holder.

Antachment B, incorporated herein by reference, is proof of the Charter Holder's legal

formation if the Charter Holder is not a private person or public body.

The Charter Representative further affirms that the Charter Holder is, and will remain, in
pood standing with the applicable regulatory body (e.g., for an Arizona Corporation, the
Arizona Corporation Commission).

Attachment €, Incorporated herein by referance, is a true and correct copy of the
Renewai Application Package of the Charter Holder, relled upon hy the Arizona State
Board for Charter Schools in granting this Charter.

2, Purpose: The Charter Holder shail operate a charter school consistent with the terms of the
Charter and all epplicable laws; shall achieve pupll outcomes according to the educational

Adopted 10/12/2011

LA

1%
1 Please Inltial k "‘3>



standards esteblished by law and this Charter; and shali be governed and managed in &
financially prudent manner,

3. Governance:

A The Chader Holder and its officers, directors, members, and partners have a duty of care
for complying with the provisions of this Charter, all applicebie laws, regulations, and
roporting requirements.

B. The Charter Holder shall establish and maintain a governing body for the charter schog!
thad ie responsible for the poiicy decisions of the charter school.
4. Operation:
A The Charter Holder shall be nonsectarian in its charter achool programs, admisslon

policles and employment practices and ail other operations.

B. The Charter Holder shall comply with all federal and state laws relating to the educetion of
children with disabilities In the same manner as a echool district.

C. The Chartar Holder shall comply with appilceble federat, state and locel rules, regulations
and statutes relating to health, safety, civil rights and insurance.

D. The Charter Holder shall maintain records to documaht dally pupil attendance and shall
meke such records available for inspaction upon request of the Arizona State Board for
Charter Schools and the Arizona Depantment of Education.

E. The Charter Holder shall maintain student records in accordance with the Arizona State
Libraty, Archives and Public Records Retontion Schedules.

F. if the Charter Holder recelves federal grants funds, the Charter Holder shall timaly submit
financlal and other reports required by the Arizona Departmeant of Education for the
Charter Holder's receipt of such funds.

5. Applicable Law: The material and services provided by this Charter Holder under this Charter
shall comply with all appticatie faderal, state, and local laws and shall conform, In all respects, o
the educational standards contalned in its application and Charter.  This Charter shalf be
govemed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona.

6. Sites: The Charer Holder shall provide educational services, including the delivery of instruction,
at the followling location{s):

BASIS Tucson
3825 East 2nd Street
Tueson, Arizong 85716

The Charter Holder shall maintain ownership, a lease, or other suitgble agreement covering the
use of all facilities, and shall ensure that the facilities comply with alf applicable federal, state and
local heaith and safety standards and cther applicable laws, regulations and rules.

7. Term of Charter: This Charter is effective upon the signing of both parties for & term of twenty
(20) years commencing on July 1, 2012 and ending on June 30, 2032, except as otherwise
provided in this Charter and by law. The Charter may be renewed for stccessive periods of
twenty {20) years pursuant to law.

1.4
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10.

11.

12,

Adopted 1012/2011 3 Pieass |nitial

Non-Avallability of Funds: Every payment obligstion of the State of Arizona under this Charter
is conditioned upon the avaliability of funds continuing to be appropriated or aliocated for the
payment of such obligations. ¥ funde are not ailocated and availabte for the continuance of this
Charier, the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools may lerminate this Charter at the end of the
period for which funds are available. No liability shall accrue to the Arizona State Board for
Charter Schools, nor the State of Arizona, or any of its subdivisions, departmsnts or divisions, in
the event this provision Is exercised, and neither the Arizona State Board for Charter Schodls nor
the State of Arizona shall be obligated or liable for any futura payments or for any damages as a
result of termination under this paragraph.

Chartor interpretation:

A, Merger: This Charter, including all of the attachments, constitutes the entire agreement of
the Parties. In the event of a conflict, the provisions of the Renawal Gharter Gontract
control, Arizona Revised Statutes, Atizona State Board for Charter School policies, and
administrative rules and reguietions, which may be amended from time lo time during the
course of the Charter, are incorporated Into this Charter, along with any amendments
which may occur during the tarm of the Chartar, by this reference.

B Walver: Either party's failure to insist on sirict performance of any termn or condition of the
Charter shall not constitute a waiver of that term or condition, even If the party acoepting
or acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knowe of the nature of the parformance
and fails to objectto it,

C Severability: The provisions of this Charter are severable. Anyterm or condition deemed
hlegal or invalid shall not atfect any other tetm or condition of the Charter.

D. Assignment: Nelther party may assigi or transfer any right or interest in this Gharter
unless authorlzed by law, No assignment, transfer or delegation of any duty of tho
Charter Holder shail be made without prior written petmission of the Avizona State Board
for Charter Schools.

Amendments io the Charter and Changes to the Charier Holder:

A This Charter may be amended or modified by mutual agreement, In writing, of the parties.
The Chartar Holder ghall not take action or implement the medification requested in the
amendrnent or notification untii approved by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools.
All amendments and notifications shall be submltted pursuant to the procedures or rules
formulated by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools.

B. Any change In the ownership of the Gharter Holder, change in the name of the Charter
Holder, or change In offizers, directors, members or partners of the Charter Holder must
ba submitted to the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools pursuant 10 the procedures
ot rules formuiated by the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools.

Insurance: The Charier Holder shall obtain and meaintain nsurance In accordance with the laws
of the State of Avizona.

Waiver of Rights: The Charter Holder and ils Insurers providing the reguired coverage shali waive
all rights of recovery against the State ot Arizona and the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
and the Department of Education, their agents, officials, assigness and employees.

Indemnification and Acknowledgements: The Charter Holder shall Indemnity, defend, save
and hold harmless the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, the State of Arizona, its
departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its officers, otficials, agents and
smployees (“iIndemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, actions, liabllities, damages,

¢
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14.

losses or expenses {inciuding court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing,
investigation and litigation) (“Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss
or damage to tangible or intangible property caused, or afleged to be caused, in whole or in par,
by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Charter Holdar or any of its owners, officers,
directors, agents, employeas or subcontractors, This indemnity inciudes any claim or amount
arising out of or recoverad under the W orkers’ Compensation Law or arising out of the failure of

"such Charter Holder to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule,

regulation or court decrese that is applicable to the Charter Holder. it ie the speeific intention of the
parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the
negligent or wiliful acts or omisslons of the indemnitee, be indemnified by the Charter Holder from
and against any and all claims. Itis agreed that the Charter Holder will be responsibie for primary
loss investigation, defense and judgmant costs where this indemnification is applicable. In
considaration of the award of this Charter, the Charter Holder agrees to waive all rights of
subrogation against the State of Arizona, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses
arising from the work performed by the Charter Holder for the State of Arizona.

A, The parties acknowledge that neither the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, the
State of Arizona, or its agencies, boards, commissions or divisions are liable for the debts
or financial obligations of a charter school or persorts or entities that operate charter
schools.

8. The parties acknowledge that, pursuant to law, the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schools, its members, officers and employeses are immune from personal liabfiity for all
acts done and actions taken in good faith within the scope of its authority.

Acadomic Performance inclicatora and Evaluatian: The Charter Holder shali:

A, Provide a comprahensive program of instruction that aligns with the state academic
standards prescribed by the Arizona State Board of Education for the grades approved to
operate.

B. Design a method to measure pupil progress toward pupll cutcomes adopted by the Arizona

State Board of Education pursuant to A.R.S. §15-741.01, including participation in the
Arizona Instrument to Measure Standards test and ihe natlonally standardized norm-
referenced achievement test as designated by the Arizong State Board of Education.

C. Meet or demonstrate sufficient progress toward the level of adeguate academic
performance as set and modified pertodically by the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schools. The level of adequate academic performance set for the following school
configurations is currently:

A school that serves any studenis between grades three and eight must meet or
exceed the state average percent proficient in reading and in math on the state
assessment and have a student growih percentite of no less than minus one standard
deviation from the state median growth percentile In reading and in math.

A school that serves students no higher than grade two must exceed the state
average scale soore on the Arizona Dapattment of Education’s norm-referanced test
administered to second grade students.

A school that serves any students from grades ten fo twelve must meet or exceed the
state average percent proficlent in reading and in math on the state assessment.

Financial Requirements:

A. The Charter Holder shell comply with the same financial and efectronic data submission
requirements as a school district, including the Uniform System of Financial Records for
Charter Schools (USFRCS) as prescribed in A.R.S. Title 15, chapter 2, article 4,

o
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15,

16.

17.

18.

18,

20.

procurement rules as prescribed In A.R.S. §15-213 and audit requirements as prascribed
in A.R.S. §15-914 uniess specifically excepted by the Arlzona State Board for Charter
Schools. If the Charter Holder hae received an exception to the USFRCS and/or
procurement rules, the Charter Holder shall, at a minimum, {ollow accounting policies and
procedures that comply with Genasrally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). This
includes using an accounting system that provides for the proper recording and reporting
of financial data and following standard intemal control procedures. In addition, the
Charter Holder shall contract for at least an annual financial statement audit thet meets the
tollowing conditions:

It is conducted by an independent certified public accountant; and
It complies with policies adopted by the Arizona State Board for Charter

Schools.
B, The Charter Holder shall pay debts as they fall due or in the usual course of business.
(of The Chartar Holder shall not cornmit or engage in gross incompetence or systematic and

agregious mismanagernent of the school's finances or financial records.

Review, Evaluation and Investigative Teams, Audits and Records: The Charter Holder shall
allow representatives from the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools, Arizona Depaniment of
Education, and/or the Arizona Auditor General to vist each school site at any reascnable ime.

The Charter Hoider ahail allow the representatives to conduct financial, program or compilance
audits and shall hold open for inapection all records, documents and files relating to any activity or
program provided by the Charter Holder relating to the chatter school or by the charter school.
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214, all books, accounts, repotis, files and other recards relating to this
Charter shall be subject, at all reasonable times, to inspection and audit by the State for five years
after termination of the Charter.

Length of Gohool Year: The Charter Holder shall provide instruction for ne less than the number
of days required by statute or as stated in the Application, whichever is greater, and meet the
minimum number of hours of instruction required by statute. The Charter Holder must provide
instruction as stated in this paragraph within the State of Arlzona's fiscal year that begins July 1st
and ends June atth.

Termination or Non-Renewal of the Charter: The Arizana State Board for Charter Schools may
revoke ¢r not renew the Charter for any material breach of the Charler and/or violation of state,
federal or iocal laws, ordinances or rules or regulations; or for conditions which threaten the
health, safety, or weltare of the students or steff of the school or of the general public.

Employees and Contractors: This Charter is not an employment contract. No officer,
employee, agent, or subcontractor of the Charter Holder or the Schoaol ig an officer, empioyee, or
agent of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools or the State of Arizona.

Non-Discrimination: As a required state contract provision, the Charter Hoider shall comply
with State Executive Order No. 2002-09, which mandates that all persons, regardiess of race,
color, retigion, sex, age, nationat origin or political affilletion, shall have equal access {0
employmeant opporiunilies, and all other applicable federal and state employment laws, rules and
regulations, Including the Americans with Disabiltties Act. The Charter Holder shali take
affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment and employees are not discriminated
against due to race, creed, color, religion, sex, national origin or disabillty.

Conflict of Interest:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511, the State of Arizona {“State”), its polfitical
subdivisions or any department or agency of either may, within three years after its execution,
cancel any contract, without penalty or further obiigation, made by the State, Its political

FLon
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subdivisions, or any of the departments or agencies of either if any person significantly involved in
initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the cortract on behalf of the State, its political
subdivisions or any of the departments or agencies of either is, at any time while the contract or
any extenslon of the contract is in effect, an employse or agent of any other party to the contract

in any capacity or a consuitant to any other party of the contract with raspect fo the subject matter
of the contract. A cancellation made pursuant to this provision shail be effective when the Chanter
Holder raceives wrilten notice of the cancellation uniess the notice epecifies a later time.

21, Fingerprinte: The Charter Holder shall comply with the reguirements of A.R.8. §15-183 (C).

A The Charter Hoider shall fingerprirt check its charter school governing body members
pursuant fo A.R.S. §15-512 and submit all changes in membars through the process
stated in Paragraph 10. A fingerprint check must be conducted for sach new governing
body member.

B. The Charter Holder must maintain valid fingerprint clearance cards on alt officers,
directors, members, and parntners of the Charter Holder and submit all changes in officers,
directors, members, and partners through the process stated in Paragraph 10.

2z, Notices: Any notice required, or permitted, under tha Charter shall be In wiiting and shali be
effoctive Inmadiately upon personal dafivery, upon receipt of eleétronic mall, or three (3) days
after mailing to the following:

Charter Holder: Arizona State Board for Charter Schools:
Michaei Block, Kiisten Jordison, DeAnne Rowe

Craig Barrett and Carolyn McGarvey  Arizona State Board for Charier Scheols
BASIS School, inc, P.0O. Box 18328

11485 North 136th Street, Ste. 109 Phoonix, AZ 85002
Scottsdeale, AZ 85252

The Arizona State Board for Charter Schools may make changes in the address of its contact
person by posting the changs(s) on ils website.
BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
el ' X
Executed thie 1) day of H Ay 2012,

(L2 et
By O T Y < AT w
Cralg Barrett, Charter Representativis for BASIS School, Inc,

ARIZONA STATE BOARD FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS

Executedthis 24 __dayof P )éuy 2012,

/
By, __éim_.m’ yyr g
DeAnna Rowe, Executive Director of the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools.

43
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R A O T
SEQUENCE : 20161200777
No. Pages: 3
4/29/2016 2:54 PM
FIRST AMSRICAN T E | T, I NODRIGUEZ, RECORDEX \(
When Recorded Mail To:
Terry D. Warren, Esq.
Warren Charter Law, PLC
7702 East Doubletree Ranch Road
Suite 300
Scottsdale, Arizona 85258
MLS 190133
U aby WARRANTY DEED

For the consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other valuable considerations, the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, RCA-CCA INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., an Arizona limited
liability company (“Granter”), does hereby convey to BASIS SCHOOLSINC., an Arizona nonprofit
corporation (“Grantee”), the following described real property, situated in Pima County, Arizona:

See Exhibit “A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

SUBJECT TO: current taxes, assessments, reservations in patents and all easements, rights of way,
covenants, conditions and restrictions ag may appear of record in the records of the Pima County Recorder.

AND Grantors hereby bind themselves, jointly and severally, and their respective successors and
assigns to warrant and defend the title against all persons whomsoever, subject to the matters set forth above.

Dated this _a_zrd':ly of April 2016.
RCA-CCA INVE S, an Ari limited liability
company
Jose R¥hcon, ité Member
STATE OF ARIZONA )
County of Pima ; *

_Th
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this €2j Z day of April 2016, by Jose Rincon
as the Member of RCA-CCA INVESTMENTS, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, on behalf of

the company. 0 2
T, 3 £ i
-

Noﬁ Public

My Commission Expires: NOI/ 25:, Zél.é')




Exhibit A
(Warranty Deed)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL NO. 1:

ALL THOSE PORTIONS OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 14 EAST, GILA AND SALT
RIVER MERIDIAN, STATE OF ARIZONA, COUNTY OF PIMA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A 2" BRASS DISK IN CASTING STAMPED "3, 4, 9, 10, T14S, R14E, RLS 20373"
MONUMENTING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9;

THENCE SOUTH 89° 3¢* 41" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 9, SAID LINE
BEING THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS DESCRIPTION, 615.10 FEET TO THE WEST LINE AND
ITSNORTHERLY PROLONGATION, OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 9133
AT PAGE 89 IN THE OFFICE OF THE PIMA COUNTY RECORDER;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 43' 53" EAST, ALONG SAID PROLONGATION, 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING ON THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SPEEDWAY BLVD, AS SHOWN ON THE
ROAD MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 4 AT PAGE 80 IN SAID RECORDERS OFFICE;

CONTINUING ALONG SAID PROLONGATION, SOUTH 00° 43' 53" EAST, 115.00 FEET TO A POINT
ON A LINE 165.00 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION
9, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED IN
DOCKET 9133 AT PAGE 89;

THENCE SOUTH 89° 30' 41" WEST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 145.00 FEET TO THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 9684 ATPAGE 1 144;

THENCE NORTH 00° 43' 53" WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID DOCKET 9684 PAGE 1144,
0.95 FEET TO THE SOUTH FACE OF THE BUILDING DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 10767 AT PAGE 936-
937 IN SAID RECORDERS OFFICE;

THENCE NORTH 89° 30" 41" EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH FACE, 0.73 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER THEREOF;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST FACE OF SAID BUILDING, 85.00 FEET TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF:

THENCE SOUTH 89° 30' 41" WEST ALONG THE NORTH FACE OF SAID BUILDING, 0.07 FEET TO
SAID WEST LINE OF SAID DOCKET 9684 AT PAGE 1144;

THENCE NORTH 00° 43' 53" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 29.05 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT
OF WAY LINE AS SHOWN ON SAID ROAD MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 4 AT PAGE 80;

THENCE NORTH 89° 30" 41" EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 145.00 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING.



PARCEL NO. 2:

AN EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE LAND, WHICH EASEMENT IS 15 FEET IN WIDTH
ADJACENT AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE LAND AND AS
MENTIONED IN DEED RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF PIMA
COUNTY, ARIZONA, FROM FRANCES E. GEFFS TO DONG TUNG RECORDED INDOCKET 42 AT
PAGE 271.

PARCEL NO. 3:

DECLARATION OF ACCESS EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD IN SAID
RECORDER'S OFFICE IN DOCKET 12410 AT PAGE 1253.



FFID. F PROPERTY VALUE
1, ASSESSOR’S PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER(S)
Primary Parcel: 125-10-018A -
BOOK MAP PARCEL SPLIT
Does this sale include any parcels that are being split / divided?
Check one:  Yes No

How many parcels, other than the Primary Parcel, are included in
this sale?

Please list the additional parcels below {attach list if necessary):
(1) (3

(2) 1)

* E RECORDING * Page 1 of 2

(a)County of Recordaticon: PIMA
(b)Date of Recording: 4/29/2016
(¢) Fee/Recording Number: 20161200777

0

2. SELLER’'S NAME AND ADDRESS:
RCA-CCA Investments, L.L.C.
2327 East Speedway
Tucson, AZ 85719

9, TYPE OF DEED OR INSTRUMENT {Check Only One Box):

a. [X] warmanty Deed d. [] Gentract or Agreement
b. [ ] Special Warranty Deed [C] Quit Claim Deed
¢ [] Joint Tenancy Deed f. [] Other

3. (a) BUYER'S NAME AND ADDRESS:

Basis Schools, Inc,
7975 North Hayden Road, Sulte B-121
Scotisdale, AZ 85258

(b) Are the Buyer and Seller related? Yes [ INo [X]
If Yes, state relationship:

10. SALE PRICE: $[275,000 o0 |
11 DATE OF SALE (Numerc  0__2 16

Digits): Month/Year

12. DOWN PAYMENT $/275,000 [o6 ]

4. ADDRESS OF PROPERTY:
3740 East Speedway Boulevard

Tucson, AL

5. (a) MAIL TAX BILL TO: (Texes due even if no bill received)
Basis Schools, Inc. )
7975 North Hayden Road, Suite B-121
Scottsdale, AZ 85258
{b) Next tax payment due 10/2016

6. PROPERTY TYPE (for primary parcel}: NOTE: Check Only One Box
a. [X] vacant land f. [ ] commercial or Industrial Use
b. [_] Single Famity Residence 9. | Agriculture
c. [] Condoor Townhouse  h.{__ | Moblle or manufactured Home
: [ affixed  [_] Not Affixed
d.[] 2-4 Plex . i |:] Other Use; Specify:
e.[ ] Apartmient Building

7. RESIDENTIAL BUYER'S USE: If you checked E, ¢, dorhinitemé6
-above, please check one of the following:
a.[ ] To be used as a primary residence.
b.|::| To be rented to someone other than a “quatified famlly member.”
¢.[_] To be used as a non-primary or secondary residence.
See reverse side for definition of a “primary residence, secondary residence”

and “family member,”

8. If you checked e or fin item 6 above, indicate the number of units:
For Apartments, Motels / Hotels, Mobile Home / RV Parks, etc.

HE LII'V‘D RSIGNED BEING DULY SWORN, ON OATH, SAYS THAT THE FGREGOING I A 5

E TRANSFER OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY,

13, METHOD OF FINANCING:
a. [X] Cash (100% of Sale Price) e. [__] New loan(s) from

Financlal institution:

b. ] Barter or trade (1) [] Conventional
‘ SR ) I
¢ [__| Assumption of existing loan(s) [ Fna

f. [] other financing; Specify:
d. [_] Seller Loan (Camryback)
14. PERSONAL PROPERTY (see reverse side for definition):
(a) Did the Sale Price in item 10 include Personal Property that
impacted the Sale Price by 5 percent or more? Yes [ | No [
{b) If Yes, provide the dollar amount of the Personal Property:
$ .00 [ _oojanp
briefly describe the Personal Property:

15, PARTIAL INTEREST: If only a partial cwnership interest is being sold,
briefly describe the partial interest:

16, SOLAR / ENERGY EFFICIENT COMPONENTS.
- {a) Did the Sale Price in Item 10 lnclude sular energy devices, energy

efficient building components renewable energy equipment or
" combined heat and power systems that impacted the Sale Price by .

Specentormore?  -Yes ] - NofX]

) _If Yes, briefly describe the solar / energy efficient components:

17. PARTY COMPLETING AFFIDAVIT (Name, Address, Phone Number):

First American Title Insurance Company Natlonal Commercial
Services

2425 E. Camelback Road, Sulte 300

Phicenix, AZ 85016

Phone {602)567-8100
18. LEGAL DESCRIPTION (attach copy if neoessary)
.See attached exhibit A . - :
E AND CORRECT STA E FACTS

Signature of Seller /

State of Arizona , County of _INOr v COP(L
Subscribed and swom to before me on thiseY day of April 201 6
Notary Public _ ) -
I;Isotary Expiration Date 10-19 2ol
DOR FORM 82162 (04/20 COLLEEN A, STOUT

Public - State of Arizons

RICOPA COUNTY
:on Expires Oct. 19, 2014

Signatureof Buyer //Aggm/ \\jm

State of Arizona , County of v wP‘L
‘Subscribed and swomn to before me on this D5 Ty of April 2016
Notary Publlc

Notary Expiration Date

104§ Dol

COLLEENA. STOUT
Notary Public - State of Arizona
MARiGOPAcou NTY

My Commission Expiras Oct. 19, 2018




EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NO. 1:

ALL THOSE PORTIONS OF SECTION S, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 14 EAST, GILA AND SALT RIVER -
MERIDIAN, STATE OF ARIZONA, COUNTY OF PIMA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT A 2" BRASS DISK IN CASTING STAMPED "3, 4, S, 10, T14S R14E, RLS 20373" MONUMENTING
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 9

THENCE SOUTH 89° 30" 41" WEST, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 9, SAID LINE BEING THE BASIS
OF BEARINGS FOR THIS DESCRIPTION, 615,10 FEET TO THE WEST LINE AND ITS NORTHERLY
PROLONGATION, OF THAT CERTAIN PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 9133 AT PAGE 89 IN THE OFFICE OF THE
PIMA COUNTY RECORDER;

THENCE SOUTH 00° 43' 53" EAST, ALONG SAID PROLONGATION, 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING ON
THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SPEEDWAY BLVD, AS SHOWN ON THE ROAD MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 4
AT PAGE 80 IN SAID RECORDERS OFFICE;

CONTINUING ALONG SAID PROLONGATION, SOUTH 00° 43' 53" EAST, 115.00 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE
165.00 FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 9, SAID POINT ALSO BEING
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 9133 AT PAGE 89;

THENCE SOUTH 89° 30" 41" WEST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 145.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF
THAT CERTAIN PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 9684 AT PAGE 1144;

THENCE NORTH 00° 43' 53" WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID DOCKET 9684 PAGE 1144, 0.95 FEET TO
THE SOUTH FACE OF THE BUILDING DESCRIBED IN DOCKET 10767 AT PAGE 936-937 IN SAID RECORDERS
OFFICE;

THENCE NORTH 89° 30" 41" EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH FACE, 0.73 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST 'CORNER
THEREOQF;

THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE EAST FACE OF SAID BUILDING, 85.00 FEET TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER
THEREOF;

THENCE SOUTH 89° 30' 41" WEST ALONG THE NORTH FACE OF SAID BUILDING, 0.07 FEET TO SAID WEST
LINE OF SAID DOCKET 9684 AT PAGE 1144, C o

THENCE NORTH 00° 43' 53" WEST ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 29.05 FEET TO THE SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE
AS SHOWN ON SAID ROAD MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 4 AT PAGE 80;

THENCE NORTH 89° 30" 41" EAST ALONG SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE, 145.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, ‘

PARCEL NO. 2:

AN EASEMENT FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE LAND, WHICH EASEMENT IS 15 FEET IN WIDTH ADJACENT AND
PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF THE LAND AND AS MENTIONED IN DEED RECORDED IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF PIMA COUNTY, ARIZONA, FROM FRANCES E, GEFFS TO DONG TUNG
RECORDED IN DOCKET 42 AT PAGE 271.

PARCEL NO. 3:

DECLARATION OF ACCESS EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD IN SAID RECORDER'S OFFICE IN
DOCKET 12410 AT PAGE 1253,
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WARREN CHARTER LAW

February 28, 2019
VIA UPS NEXT DAY
Ms. Grace Gutierrez
Pima County Assessor, Exemption Section
240 North Stone Avenue
Tucson, Arizona 83701

RE: BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. — Notice of Past Due Real Estate Taxes

Dear Ms, Gutierrez:

Thiis firm represents BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. (“BASIS,” formerly known as BASIS Schools,
Inc.): I have received emails from iny client relating to five parcels of land in Pima County, Arizona. I
will address each parcel with a separate letter. This letter addresses Pima County Assessor parcel number
12510018A, located at 3740 East Speedway Boulevard, Tucson, Arizona (the “Property™).

A notice from the Pima County Treasurer’s Office, enclosed for your reference, indicates that the
Property has delinquent taxes and is subject to sale if the taxes are not paid immédiately. Furiher, in a
phone call on February 5, 2019, the Pima County Assessor’s Office advised BASIS that a lien for this
Property has been sold and the Property is subject to foreclosure in February 2020.

We are confused by the continued assertion (through notices such as the one enclosed) that taxes
are owed and delinquent and alarined by the reported lien sale because, as you know, BASIS is a tax-
exempt, nonprofit corporation that operates charter schools in Arizona. Under applicable Arizona law,
specifically, A.R.S, §42-11104.C, “Property and buildings, including land, improvements, furiture and
equipment, that are owned by a nonprofit organization that is recogrized under section 501(c)(3) of the
internal revenue code and that operates as: 1. A charter school pursuant to section 15-183 are exempt
Srom taxation beginning on the date the nonprofit organization acquires ownership of the property atd
buildings if the property and buildings are used for education and are not used or held for profit”
(emphasis added).

BASIS acquired the Property on April 29, 2016, BASIS has used the Properly for educational
purposes since the date of acquisition. Although we believe that BASIS filed an application for property
tax exemption for the Properly, we transitioned our records from hard copies to digital copies in 2016 and
we cannot immediately locate a digital copy of the application. We are reviewing our paper storage {iles
to locate the application. So that we eliminate the application issue, | have enclosed a new application for
exemption so thal the Assessor’s files will include the application. Arizona law does not require that the
application be filed within any specific time period, so the attached application satisties the requirement
for the application. The application requests exemption from property taxation from and after April 29,
2016 as provided by applicable law. Accordingly, the Property should be approved for property tax
exemption on and afier April 29, 2016.

Based upon Arizona law (as cited above) the Property is tax exempt from the date of purchase
and we respectfully request that any taxes assessed against the Property on and afler April 29, 2016 be
retroactively corrected to zero and that the lien on the Property be recovered from the purchaser. Please
coniact me to discuss the issue so that we can resolve this matter.

7702 East Doubletree Kanch Road, Suite 300 | Scotrsdale, Arizona 85258 | 480.222.2045 | 866.790.1797 | Fax 480.222.2044

wyw.warrencharterlaw.com




@ ‘

Thank you for your-prompt attention to this matter,

Sincerely,

ey D ave

Terry Warren

Enclosures
cc: Bill Driscoll, BASIS Charter.Schools, Ine.

www.warrencharierlaw.com






NON-PROFIT AND RELIGIOUS ORGANIZATIONS

Property Tax Information and Questionnaire form

QUESTIONNAIRE FOR PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION
ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED TO BE CONSIDERED FOR EXEMPTION

10.

11.

Name & Address of Organization;
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.

2975 Norih Hayden Road. Suite B100

_Scotisdaie, Arizona 85258

Under which section of Title 42, Chapter 11, Article 3 does your organization claim

exemptmn'? 42-11104
(Arizona Revised Statutes can be found at: azleg gov)

Are there any type of business activities such as snack bars, cafés or restaurants operating
on the premises? Yes__ [l No [

Is the organization exempt from Federal and/or State income taxes?
Yes_ P4 No_ [3
Is.the Organization a 501 (C)? Yes_ [ which type_501(c)(3) . No_ [0

Give day, month, and year deed/title was acquired by applicant.
Day 29 Month_ g4  Year 201¢

Claimant is: Qwner/Operator 3] Owneronly_ [0 Operator only___[] .

Exemption is claimed on:
Allland__[f]  Buildings & Improvements_ B Personal Property [

Is any portion of the property used as a place of residence? Yes O No B
If yes, state number of individuals occupying the premises and the duration of the
occupahcy.

Does applicant receive any income? (other than free will offerings in connéction with this

property) Yes_ [l No [0

Is any portion of the proErty being leased or rented to a non-profit and/or a for- profit
organization(s)? Yes No_ [ . Ifyes, please list the name(s) of the
organization(s)

List date of occupancy: Month. 04 Day_2g Year 2014




EXEMPTION TYPE: 501{c)(3) charter school

ORGANIZATION NAME: BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
fka BASIS Schools, Inc.

2019
AFFIDAVIT FOR ORGANIZATIONAL TAX EXEMPTION
Pursuant to A.R.S, §§ 42-11101 through 42-11155

CONTACT INFORMATION  {Addrasa if differant than Applicant)

| NAME: Terry Warren

Mailing Address:

7975 North Hayden Road, Suite B100
Scotisdale, Arizona 85258

EXEMPTION TYPE:

RELIGIOUS ORGANEZATION | [ | NoN-prOFIT ORGANIZATION | [
CHARITABLE ORGANIZATION | ]| EDUCATIONAL PROPERTY |N &3]
VETERANS ORGANIZATION | J | cemeTery O
OTHER {SPECIFY TYPE) | O

ADDRESS: 7702 E. Doubletree Ran'c':h Road, Suite 300

CImY: Scottsdale 5TATE: AZ  ZIPCODE: 85258

TELEPHONE # FOR APPLICANT: 480-222.2045 ext 2

Contact Emisil: twarreri@warrencharterlaw.com

NOTES: Attorney for Applicant’

NOTE: SIGNATURE MUST BE NOTARIZED OR SIGNED IN THE
PRESENCE OF ASSESSOR'S OFFICE PERSONNEL

{A} PROPERTY LIST

(B). LIST USAGE:

Parcel #125-10-018A

STATE OF ARIZONA / PIMA COUNTY

IHEREBY CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT | HAVE
READ OVER THE FOREGOING FACTS BEFORE SUBSCRIBING MY
NAME HERETO AND THAT ALL MATTERS HEREIN STATED ARE
TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

X

PROPERTY OWNER / AGENT DATE

X

DEPUTY ASSESSOR / NOTARY ~ COMMISSION EXPIRES



IRS DETERMINATION LETTER




INTERNAL REVENUE BSERVICE DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

DISTRICT DIRECTOR
B. 0. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201
Bmploysr Identification Number:

Date: NOV 1 © 1998 : - 86-0500854
_ 17053232021008
BAEIS BCROOL, INC. * Contact Person:
€740 CALLE DE CALIPSO . BO CUBTOMER. SERVICE
TUCSON, AX 85718-2089 Centact "Telephone Humber:

{213) B34-2289
Aeoounting Period Ending:
"Daocnbar 4]
Form 090 Raquirad-

yvés
Addendum Applies:
no

Deaxr Applicant:

Based on iuformation supplied, and assuming your aperations will be as:
stated in your application fox recognition of exemption, we have determined .
you are exempt from federal income tax under section 501{a) ¢f the Internal
‘Revenue Code asm an organixation described in secticm 501(c) (3).

We have further determined that you are nn.t 8 private foundation within
the meaning of saction 50%i{a) of the Code, becsuse you gre an organiration
degeribed in sections 509{a) (1) and 170(b} {1) (A) (11} .

If your sources of support,. or your purposes, character, or methed of
operation change, please let us mow so we can consider the effect of the
change on your exempt status and foundation atatus, In the case of an amend-
ment to your organizational document or bylaws, please send us a copy of the
amendad document or bylaws. ‘Also, you smhould inform us of all changes in your
name of. addxsas, .

. As of January 1, 1984, you are liable for taxes undar the Federal
Insurance Contributions Ast {social security taxes) on resuneraticn of 100
or wmore you pay to emch of your employees during a calendar yaar. You are
not liabla for the tax imposed under the Federal Unemployment rlx Act (FOTA).

. gince you are ot .a pkivate foundation, you' ars not subject. fo the excise
.I:axem\ﬁul Cﬁnpl:-r 4x: ofrtbe Code. Howaver, 'iif you ara inve d in an excess
benefit, !h:inccim, Wchat tranamceion might Ya subject to the exvime taxes-of
‘lag gtden | 4338 . " agditictially, you are not But tically n.xupt £xom other .
f‘ldenl: excise taxes. If you have any quest Aabout. u:cian, amployment, or-

' other féderal mn, plelu cmtnct your key;district ofﬂgg. :

Y " [ '.“; iy
'_,,- & rDopars may doduet centPibutions to you as providad’ in, section 170°of the

‘o I,.cpdn.h Rigqueats, legacies, d'evi‘bea, crmlcrg, or gifts ko you or fof ‘your use .

_Aarve deductibie for federal éstate and gifif tax purposes if they meet t:txe
ap'plica:ble prmril:.cms of'd“_t‘oda sections 2055,*2106. and 2523.

LX) ]

. Com:xibution daducigion) - are illowable tb donora only e the sxtent tnuf

. r.beir coheributiona are "gifts,-with no .pénmideration received. Ticket purm
chnua and qiuu.ldr paymenss in conjunction with fundraising- evpnr.s may not.in

Letter 547 (DO/CG)
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BASIS& SCBOOL, INC.

necessarily qualify as deductible contributians, depending on the oiroum-
stances. Bee Revenue Ruling §7-246, published in Cumulative Bullatin 1567-2,
on page 104, which sets forth guidelines yegarding the deductibility, as’ chari-
table contributions, of payrments nade by taxpayers for admission to or othar
participation in fundraising sctivitias for charity.

In the hending of this letter we have indicated whether you must file Porm
950, Return of Organization Bxempt Prom Income TaX. If Yes ip indicated, you
ars yequired to file Form 990 only if your gross receipte sach year are
normelly mora than $2E,000. Howaver, if you resceive & Form 950 package in the

mail, please file the return even if ynu do nct sxceed the grosa receipts test.
If you axe not required to file, simply attach the label providsd, check the
bax in the heading to indicate that your annual gross receipte are pormally

425,000 or less, and sign the return.

If a veturn is regquired, it must be filsd by the 15th day of tha fifth
month after the end of your annusl dccounting pericd. A penalty of $20 a day
is charged when a return is filed late, unless there is ressonable cause for
the delay. However, the maximum pepalty charged cannot excesd $10,000 or
B percent of your gross receipts for the year, shichaver is less. For
organizations with grous receipts excaeding 41,000,000 in any year, the penalty
i3 $100 per day per return, unless there ia reascnable cause for the delay.

The maximum penalty for an orgsnization with gross racelpts exceading
$1,000, 000 shall not exceed §5Q,000. This panalty may &180 be chargad if a
return is not complets, mo bs sure your return is complate before you file it.

You are required to make your annual raturn availeble for public
inspection for three years after the retwm is dus. You axe also required
to mike mvailable: a copy of your exemption applicaticn; any supporkting
documents, and this exemption lattex. Failure to make thase documsnts .
svailable for public inspection may subject you to & penalty of 520 psr day
for sach day there is a failure to comply {up to m maximum of 510,000 iy the
case of an anpual rsturm).

You are not required to file federal income tax returns. wiless you are
subject to the tax on unrelated business income under section 511 of the Code,
If vou are subjact to this tax, you must file an income tax raturn on Porm
990-T, Exempt Organization Bupiness Income Tax Return. In this letter we are

' neot determining whather any ¢f your present or proposed ‘activities are unre-
lated trade or business as defined in section 513 of the Code.

You nesd an. smployer identifisation number even if you have nc employees.
1f an employex identification number was not antersd on your aApplication, a
munber will be assigned to you and you will Dbe adviaged -of it. Please use that
pumber on a1l returns you file and in all correspandence with the Internal

Revenue Service.

In sccordance with ssction 508 (s) of the Code, the effective date of this
determination letter im March 24, 15398.

Letter 547 (DO/OQ)




BASIS BCHOOL, INC.

TE we bave indicated in the heading of this letter that an addandum
applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of this latter.

Because thim letter could help resolve any questions about your exempt
status and foundstion atatus, you should keep it in your perwanent records.

If you have any guestions, please contact the perscn whose nema and
telephone: number are shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincersly yours,

'Dintrint Director

Letter, 847 (DO/CG)
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BYLAWS

OF

BASIS SCHOOL, INC.
Arizone Nonprofit Corporation

Amended October 7, 2005




ARTICLE 1

L1  Priacipsl Office.  The principal office of the Basis School, Inc., an Arizona
nonprofit corporation (the “Corporation™ shall be its known place of bnsiness in Tucson,

12 Other Offices. The Corporation also may meintain offices at such other place or
places, cither within or without the State of Arizona, as may be designed from time to time by the
Bosrd of Directors end the business of the Corporution may be transacted and such other offices
with the same effect as that conducted at the principal office.

13 Comorate Seal. A corporate scal shall not be requisite to the validity of any
instrument executed by or on behalf of the Corporation, but one may be used if the officers or the
Board of Directors so decide.

ARTICLE 2
PURPOSES
21 Wﬂm The purposes for which the Corporation is formed are
those set forth in its. Articles of Inompontion, initially being orgenized exclusively for

educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501 ( c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Intemnal Revenue Laws.

22 M_w Advisory Boards, and Oversight Committees
Among its activities, the Corporstion will develop and operate one or more schools, either within
or without the State of Arizons. Each such school ghall be provided with such means of oversight
and direction as the Corporation’s Board of Directors may prescribe from time to time, which
may include School Boards or advisory or oversight committees established and appointed by the
Board of Directors, and operating under such regulation of suthoritics and duties as the Board of

Directors may provide.

22.1 Arijzona Charter Schools. For such of the schools as are charter schools
within the meaning of Arizona Revised Statutes section 15-183, the foregoing provisions of this
section 2.2 are modified as follows: each such school holding a separete charter in Arizona shall
be provided with a separate School Board consisting of not less than seven (7) voting members,
which School Board shalt constitute the goveming body for the charter school that is responsible
for the policy decisions of the charter school, within the meaning of A,R.S. 15-183, subd. E.8.




Both voting and non-voting members of such Schoo! Boards shall be appointed by the
Corporation’s Board of Directors, for such terms and upon such conditions as the Directors may
establish; provided, however, that not more than three (3) of the voting members of any one such
School Board may simultanoously be members of the Corporation’s Board of Directors; and
provided further that, notwithstanding such terms and conditions, or other provisions as may be
adopted to regulgte such School Boards by the Corporation’s Board of Directors, each such
School Board shall retain the responsibility for the policy decisions of its respective charter
schoo] within the meaning of A.R.S. 15-183, subd. E.8. Meetings of such School Boards shal! be
conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Arizona public meeting law,

2.3  Dividends Prohiblted. The Corporation is not formed for pecuniary or financial
gain, and no part of the assets, incoms, or profit of the Corporation is distributable to, or will
inure to the benefit of, its directors or officers or other private individual; provided, however, that
nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the payment of reasonable compensation
for services actually rendered by employecs, officers or directors of the Corporation and
reimburscment of expenses incurred in connection therewith,

ARTICLE 3

MEMBERSHIP
The Corporation will not have members.

ARTICLE 4

4.1 Number: Chatrman. The board of directors shall consist of not less than three
(3) persons nor more than nine (9) persons as determined by the board, The directors may choose
from among their mumber @ Chairman of the Board, who shall preside at the moetings of the
board,

42 Vacapcies. Vacancies and newly created directorship resulting from any increase
in the authorized number of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of
remaining directors then in office, though not less thet & quorum, or by a sole remaining director,
and the directors so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election and until their
muccessors are duly elected and qualified, unless sooner replaced. If there are no directors in
office, then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by statute,

43 Powers. The business and affuirs of tho Corporation shall be managed by its
Board of Directors.




44  Place of Meeting, The Board of Directors of the Corporation may hold meetings,
both regular, and special, either within or without the State of Arizons. Such may be held by
mesn of conference telephone or mimilar communications equipment by means of which all
persons participation in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in a mecting pursuant
to this section shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

45  Aunnpgl Meeting. The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held
during the first week of January or at such other date and time as shall be designated by the Board
of Directors and stated in the notice of meeting. Notice to the current Board of Directors of each
annuil meeting shall be given by the secretary by mall, telephone, e-mail or telegram and shall be
given st least ten (10) days and not more than fifty (50) days prior to such mecting. At the annual
meeting, the current Board of Directore shall elect successor directors who shall immediately
assume duties as directors. No notice shall be necessary to the newly constituted Board of
Directors in order for the meeting Iegally to constitute the ennually meeting, provided that the
quorum of the newly constructed Board of Directors shall be present. At its annual meeting, the
newly constructed Board of Directors shall elect the officers of the Corporation and may transact
any other business, which may properly come before it. If a quorum of the newly constructed
Boerd of Directors is not present, the annual meeting will be held as soon as practicable after the

4.6  Regular Meetiugs. Regular meetings or the Board of Directors may be: held
without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the
Board.

47  Specisl Mestings. Special mestings of the Board mey be called by the president
or Chairman of the Board or tho sccretary on ien (10) days notice to each director, cither
personally, by e-mail, by mail, by telegram or by telephone. Special meetings shall be called by
the president or secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of any director,
The time and place of each special meeting shall be determined by the president, but in the case
of meeting called upon the request of a director the time of such meeting shall be no later than the
expiration of a tea (10) day period following the date of such request or such longer period as
may be specified in the request.

48 Ouorum. A majority of the membership of the Board of Directors shall constitute
a quorum and the concutrence of & majority of those present shall be sufficient to conduct the
business of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by the
Articles of Incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board of
Directors, the directors then present may adjourn the meeting to another time or place, without a
notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

49  Actiop without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the
Board of Directors or of any commitiee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members
of the board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or
writings are filed with the minutes of procecdings of the Board or committee.

4.10 _Wslver Notice. Attendance by a director at a meeting shall constituie waiver of
notice of such meeting, except when the person sttends the mecting for the express purpose of
objecting to the transaction of sny business becausc the meeting is not lawfully called or




convened. Any director may waive notice of any annual, regular or special meeting of directors
by executing a written notice of waiver either before or after the time of the meeting.

4.11 _Compensstion. The amount or rate of such compensation of membets of the
'Board of Directors or of committees shall be established by the Board of Directors and shall be
set forth in the minutes of the board,

ARTICLE 5

51  Designation of Tifles. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the
Board of Directors and shall be a president, a secrtary and a treasurer. The Board of Directors
also may choose one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries and assistant
trepsurers and an Executive Director, Any number of offices, except the offices of president and
secretary may be held by the same person, unless the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws

52  Appointment of Officers. The Board or Directors at cach annual mecting shall
elect a president, a secretary and a treasmurer, ¢ach of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors at any time may appoint such other officers and
agents as it shall deem necessary to hold office at the pleasurc of the Board of Directors and to
exercise such powers and performs such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the
board

53  Salaries, The salaries of the officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board
of Directors, and no officer shall be prevented form receiving such salary by reason of the fact
that he is also a direstor of the Corporation.

54  Term, The officers of the Corporation shall hold office until their successors are
chosen and qualify on their stead. Any officer elected by the Board of directors may be removed
at any time by the board of directors;, If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason,
the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

58  President The president shell function as tho Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation. He or she ghall sign all deeds and conveyances, all contracts and agreements and all
other instruments requiring execution on the behalf of the Corporation, and shall act as operating
and directing head of the Corporation, and all of its constituent activities, including the operation
of BASIS schools, subject to the general management of the Corporation’s Board of Directors
and to policies, procedures, and limitations established by the Board of Directors in these by-laws
or otherwise. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors.

56  Secretary. The sccretary shall see that the minutes of all meetings of the Board of
Directors and of any standing committees are kept. He or she shall be the custodian of the
corporate seal and shall affix it to all proper instruments when deemed advisable by him or her or




when instructed by the Board. He or she shall give or cause to be given required notices of all
meetings of the Board of Directors. He or She shall have charge of all books and records of the
Corporation, except the books of account, and in general shall perform all duties incident to the
office of secretary of a corporation and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the
Mo‘m-

3.7  Treasurer. The treasurer shall have general tustody of all the funds and securities
of the Corporation. Be or she shall sce to tho deposit of the finds of the Corporation in such bank
or banks as the Board of Directors may designate. Regular books of account shall be kept under
hisdhwﬁmandsupaﬁsion.andheoraheshﬂlmdﬂ'ﬂmcial statements to the president and
Directors at proper times, The treasurer shall have charge of the preparation and filing of such
reports, financial statemenits and returns as may be required by law; He or she shall give to the
Corporation such fidelity bond as may be required by the Board and the premium paid by the
Corporation as an operating expense. He or she shall sec that the Corporation propertics arc
sdequately insured against liability.

ARTICLE 6

c .

The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board
designate one (1) or more committees, to consist of two (2) or more members of the Directors of
the Corporation. Any such committes, to the extent provided in the resolution, and as otherwisc
restricted by law, shall have and may exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affuirs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the
Corporstion to be affixed to all papers which may require it; provided, however, that in the
sbsence of disqualification of any member of such committce or commitiecs, the member or
members thereof present at any meeting not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or she or
they constitute a quorum, mey unanimously appoint another of the Board of Directors to-act at
the meeting in place of any such absent or disqualified member. Such committoe or committoes
shall heave such nmme or names as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by
the Board of Directors. :

ARTICLE 7

NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

It shall be the policy of the Corporation and of any school operated by the Corpo::aﬁon
that such school admit students of any race, color, national, and cthnic origin to all the rights,

privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at such

school. No school shall discriminate on the basis of race, color, national and ethnic origin in
administration of its educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship and loan programs,
and athletic and other school- administered programs. The Corporstion shall make its




nondiscriminstion policy kmown to all scgments of the general community. served by the schools
at least annally, strictly in accordance with the broad dissemination standards as sct forth by
relovant publication of the Intemal Revenue Service; and shall further strive to include notice of
its said policy iu all brochures, catslogues and sdvertising dealing with student admissions,
program, and scholarships. The Corporation shall monitor compliance with said policy to ensure
its application to the Corporation’s activities, and shall also keep records conceming the racial
composition of its student body, faculty, and staff, as well as its racially nondiscriminatory
policy, including records of the publication of that policy, in accordance with the requirements of
the Internal Revenue Service.

These -B‘ or amended, or substitute Bylaws may be
adopted at any time, only by & majority of the board of directors.

TERATION OR AMENDMENL

Amended this October 7. 2005
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

Pursuant 1p the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes § 10-11006, BASIS Schools, Inc.,
an Arizona nonprofit corporation, hereby adopts the following First Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc. and certifies as follows:

1. The name of the corporanon as currently reflected in the records of the Arizona
Corporation Commission is “BASIS Schools, Inc.” and the Arizona Corporation Commission File
Number for the corporation is 0835764-0.

2. The filing of this First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of BASIS Schools, In¢. includes & name change for the corporation to “BASIS
Charier Schools, Inc.”

3, The Resolution of the Board of Directors of BASIS Schools, Inc. which authorizes
the name change for the corporation from “BASIS Schools, Inc.” to “BASIS Charter Schools,
Inc.,” and which is the basis for this First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc., was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the

corporation on March 16, 2018, in the manner prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. There
are no members of the corporation entitled to vote on amendments to the Articles of incorporation.

4. The document atiached hereto as Exhibit A constitutes and sets forth the text of the
amendment to the Amended and Restated Anticles of Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc.

DATED this | 3 day of April, 2018.

BASIS SCHOOLS, INC,

ceath

Craig Barret,
Chairman of the Board of Directors

By:




EXHIBIT A

TEXT OF AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

The first sentence of Article I of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of BASIS
Schools, Inc. is amended to read in its entirety as follows:

The name of the corporation shall be “BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.” (referred to herein as
the “Corporation”).
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AL COHPOW":DWM“'SS'O" AMENDED AND RESTATED 04095375
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DEC 1 0 2012 RASIS SCHOOL, INC.

(Inchiding Name Change to “Basis Scheols, Inc.”

Pursuant t0.the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes §§ 10-11006 and 10-11007, BASIS
School, In¢., an Arizons nonprofit corporation, huebytdopmhefallowmgmnmdedmdmmd
Arlickes oﬂnoorpmﬂon and certifies as follows:

1. Thename of the corporation is “BASIS SCHOOL, INC.”

2. The Bling of these Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation includes a
name change for the corporation to “Basls Schools, Inc.”

3 The Amendment to the Axticles of Incorporation of the corporetion was filed with
the Arizona Corporation Commission on April 14, 2004, af File No. 11665025030,

4. Themucluoflnmmnuonﬁmhewrpomimmbdnsmmdadmdmmd
mﬂun-ennretyas set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto end incorporated hereln by this

5. 'I‘he Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation were adopted by the board
of directors of the corporation on November 14, 2012, in the manner prescribed by the Arizona
Nonprofit Corporation Act. No other person or group has the right to vots on .amendments or
restatements of the Articles of neorporation. _

6. The Amended and Resteted Articles of Incorporation supmade the original
Articles of Incarporation and all amendments and/or restatements thereto in their antirety,

e

Dated: November 14, 2012
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EXHIBIT “A”

AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

The undersigned incorporatos, desiring to form a nonprofit corporation under laws of the
State of Arizona, hereby adopts the following Articles of Incotporation.

L
Name and Place of Buiiness

The name of th corporation shall be "BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.” (referred to herein as the
"Corporation”). ‘The initial place of business and eddress for the Corporation will be 11485 North
1367 Street, Suite 109, Scottsdale, AZ 85259, but it will establish othier principal places of business
and other offices at such other places, efther within or without the State of Arizona, as the Board of
Directors may from fime to time determine,

IL
Purpose and Activities

_ This Cotporation is a nonprofit organization organized end opetated exclusively for
- charitable; educational, literary, and scientific purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of
the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code™), or carvesponding provision of any
futere federa) tax laws, Within the meaning of Ssetion 501(c)(3), the Corporstion’s primary
mission i8 to provide its students with an academically excellent and rigorous libera! arts college
preparatory education for -clementary through high school grades in charter schools. The
Corporation will operate multiple campuses both located inside end outside of Aritona, Exocept as
otherwise provided in these Articles, the Corporstion also may transact any and all lawful business
for which nonprofit corporations msy be organized under the laws of Arizons, 85 amended from
time fo time.
ml
Limitation on Activitics

(8)  No part of the net eamings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit of or be
distributable to its directors, officers, or other private persons, exoept that the Cofpowtion shall be
anthorized and empowered to pay reesonsble compensation for services rendered and to make
payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article I hersof No
substantial part of the Corporation's activities shall be the carrying on of propaganda or otherwize
attempiing to influence legislation. The Corporstion shall not participate in or intervene in
(including the publishing or distribution of statements with respect to) any political campaign on
behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

() It is intended that this Corporation shall have the status of a corporation which is

exernpt from federal income texation under Section 501(s) of the Code as an organization deseribed
in Section 501(c)(3) and is other than a private foundation by reason of being described in Section
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170(b)(1X(A)(i1) and/or 509(a)1) or (2) of the Code. These Articles shall be construed accordingly,
and all powers and activities of the Corporation shall be Jimited accordingly,

()  Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, the Corporation shall not
carry on any activities not permiticd to be carried on by a carporation: (1) exempt from income tax
- under Section 501(cX(3) of the Code or comesponding provision of any future federal tax laws;
(2) contributions to which are deductible for income tax purposes under Section 170(c)2) of the
Codc or correspondi provizion of any future federal tax Inws; (3) bequests, lagacies, davises, and
transfers 10 which are deductible for estate tax purposes under Section 2055(a)2) of the Code or
corresponding provision of any future federal tax laws; or (4) gifts to which are deductitle for gift
ahpmﬂmdcrwonzﬁ%)a)oﬁhemoreomdx‘_ onding provision of eny future federal

WS,

IV.
Board of Directors

‘The cutrent Board of Directors consists bt‘ seven (7) directors. The oumber of directors and
theit manner of election will be governed by the Bylaws, The names and addresses of the persons
who serve e the directors are:

Don Budinger B Craig Barrett
11485 North 136 Street, Suite 109 11485 North 136® Strect, Suite 109
Scottsdale, AZ B5259 Scottsdale, AZ §5259
John Morton Clint Bolick
11485 North 136™ Street, Snite 109 11485 North 136% Street, Suite 109
Scottsdale, AZ B5259 Scotsdele, AZ 85259
Terry Sarvas Micheel K. Block
11485 North 136™ Street, Suite 109 11485 North 136™ Street, Suite 109
Scottsdsle, AZ 85259 Scoltsdale, AZ 85259
Sieye Twist
11485 North 136™ Strect, Suite 109
. Beotisdale, AZ 85259
‘ V.
Members
The Corporation shall have no members.
" &
Limitation of Liability

' The personal Jiability of e director of the Corporstion, or of a person who serves on a board
of council of the Corporation in an advisory capatity to the Corporation for money damages for any
action taken or any failure to take action as a director is hereby ellminated to the fullest extent
permiited by Arizona law as it now exists or hereafter may be amended. Any vepeal or modification
of this provision shall be prospective ooly, and sball not affect adversely any limitetion on the
persona] Jiability of such person with respect to any act o+ omission occurring prior to the time of
such repeal or modification,
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v
Indemnification

To the fullest exten permitted by Arizona law as it now exints or heseafter may be amended,
the Corparation shall indemnify every director, officer or agent of the Corporation against all
expenses and Jiabilitias, including attornays' fees, roasonebly incurred by or imposed upon him in
Mm-ﬁﬁmywewﬂmgwmﬂmdM!orm.whﬂmm
criminal, administrative or investigative, fonnalgrinforma‘l,tovihichheoraheisorwa_p_aﬂy'or
is,thmunedtobenndeapgﬂyby-reasonnf.ﬂ:eﬁmhntheo_uheisqrwmadim.oﬂw,or
agmmftbecorpmﬁmorisorwumatﬂwmmhe-Cmaﬁonun‘dim_,oﬂiaer,
employee, msmbefongmtqf‘anot_hm-oo:pmﬁonnromenﬁty. The foregoing rights of
indemnnification are limited as required by Arizona law, but shall be in addition 1o snd not exclusive
of all of the rights to which sich persons may be entifled &t Jaw or otherwise, Any repeal .or
nmdiﬁbaﬁmofihisﬂrﬁdeshaﬂbemeNﬂWDnJymdMnm&mdylﬂhmy
-indﬁnniﬁoaﬁon-dghbofadimwr,;oﬂicﬁorngentofﬂleCurpbmﬂexisﬁngntthetimeofm‘:h
repeal or modification.

A1) 8
Dissolution

Upon dissolution of the Corporation, the Board of Directors, after making provision fbr the
payment of all of the labilities of the Corporation, shall arange for the distibution of all of the
assets of the Corporation exclusively for the tax-exempt purposes of the Corporation, by distribution
to one or more organizations organized and opevated exclusively for charitable, educational, literary,
or aclentific pirposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or comresponding provition of any fiture foderal tax laws, a5 the
Board of Directors shall determine, Any sasets of the Corporation not so disposed of by the
fmgoingpmvisimuhallbudispoaedofbytheSupeﬁorCoWiOfﬂwCWinMﬁphmeyrhmipal
office of the Corporation is then located, exclusively.for the tax-exempt purposes of the Corporation
or to such organization or organizations, as such Cowrt shall detesmine, which are organized and
operated exclusively for such purposes.

IX.
Statutory Agent

The name and address of the statutory agent is:

Terry Sarvas, Sarves, Coleman, Edgsll and Tobin P.C,, 5050 N. 40" Street, Suite 310,
Phoenix, AZ 85018-2153.

X
Fiscal Your

The fiscal year for this Corporation shall be July 1 through June 30, unless otherwise
fixed by a resolution of the Board of Directors.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors" Report

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying cotisolidated financial statements of BASIS Charter Schools, Inc, and
subsidiaries (the Firm), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, iinplementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of BDC, & Public Charter School, Inc. (BDC) and BTX Schools,
Inc. (BTX), subsidiaries of the Firm, which statements reflect total assets constituting 2% of the
consolidated total assets, and total revenues and support constituting 21% of the consolidated total
revenues and support, as of and for the year then ended. Those statéments were audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
BDC and BTX, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements. are free from material misstatement.

Address « 9019 East Bahia Drive Suite 100 » Scottsdale, AZ 85260 | Phone » (602).264-3077 | Fax * (602) 265-6241




An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprcssmg
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estithates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

‘Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BASIS
Charter Schools, Inc. and subsidiaries as 6f June 30, 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.
Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for the purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applled in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have. also issued our report dated January 31,
2019 on our consideration of the Firm’s ititernal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financijal
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or en compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Firm’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance. '

Fester « Crafraan, PLLC

January 31, 2019
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from government
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses, current
Prepaid debt service
Restricted cash, current
Total current assets

Noncwrrent. assets:
Prepaid expenses, noncurrent
Restricted cash, noncurrent
Property and equipment, net
Deposits
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

L1ABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued construction costs

Deferred revenue

Deposits held for others

Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net

Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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$ 17,265,236
3,733,607
507,157
2,301,028
4,405,001
18.506.100
46,718,129

2,589,593
56,048,342
249,047,070
380.490
308.065.495

$ 354,783,624

$ 13,549,011
15,195,665
1,766,905
2,333,730
4.405,001
37,250,312

361,354,588
398,604,900

(50,695,395)
6.874.119
43 821.276)

$ 354.783.624




BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year-Ended June 30, 2018
—Unrestricted
Revenue and support:
‘State revenues $ 120.517,024
Federal revenues 2,124,267
Local revenues 14,400,382
Net assets released from restrictions 6,523,271
Total revenue and support 143,564,944
Expenses:
Primary and secondary education 128,432,218
General and administrative 22,664,457
Fundtaising 1.084.598
Total expenses 152,181.273
Change in net assets (deficit) before unrealized loss and write-
off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties (8,616,329)

Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties (3.015.513)

Temporarily
Restricted Total
$ 120,517,024
2,124,267
$ 8,486,939 22,887,321
(6,523.271)
1,963,668 145,528,612
128,432,218
22,664,457
152,181,273

1,963,668 (6,652,661)

(5.015.513)

Change in net assets (deficit) {13,631,842) 1,963,668 (11,668,174)
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (37,063,553) 4910451 (32,153.102)
Net assets {deficit), end of year (50,695,395 6.874.119 43 821.276)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
‘Change in net assets (deficit)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (deficit)
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of loan issuance costs
Amortization of bond premium
Gain on disposal of assets
Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties
Changes in:
Due from government
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue -
Deposits held for others
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Funds used for prepaid debt service
Net deposits to restricted cash
Purchases of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans
Principal payments on long-term debt
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures
Cash paid during the year for interest expensed

Cash paid during the year for interest capitalized
Loan proceeds paid directly for prepaid interest and issuance costs
Loan proceeds paid directly to refinance outstanding loans payable

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

$ (11,668,174)

7,196,494
745,775
(172,656)
(132,094)
5,015,513

(1,155,323)
61,546
598,132

(352,061)
5,523,200
313,297

— 205211

6,178,860

(1,540,001)
(39,820,567)

(52.118.159)
(93,478,727

88,623,413

(2.485.000)
86,138.413

(1,161,454)

18.426.6%0
3 17,265,236

13,305,063
2,178,649
5,015,513

27,844,952
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE | - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. (the Firm), an Arizona not-for-profit organization, was formed in
fiscal year 1998-99. The Firm provides educational services to students in kindergarten through
twelfth grades. The Firm operates under chaiter contracts with the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schools, which mandates policy and -operational guidelines. Each school operates under its
respective charter contract with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is funded
primarily through State Equalization assistance. BDC, a Public Charter School, Inc, (BDC) is a
separate 501(c)(3). corporatlon established in the District of Columbia in fiscal year 2011-12,
whose sole member/fowner is the Firm. BTX Schools, Inc. (BTX) is a separate 501(c)(3)
corporation established in Texas in fiscal year 2011-12, whose sole member/owner is the Firm.
BBR Schools, Inc. (BBR) is a separate 501(c)(3) corporation established in Louisiana in fiscal year
2016-17, whose solé member/owner is the Firm, To efficiently manage the schools, the Firm
entered into 2 management services agreement with BASIS Educational Group Inc. (BASIS.ed) on
June 25, 2009.

The Firm has campuses at the following locations:

First Year of Gradés served

School Name Service in2017-2018
BASIS School, Tucson Primary 1998-99 K-4
BASIS School, Scottsdale 2003-04 4-12
BASIS School, Oro Valley 2010-11 6-12
BASIS School, Chandler 2011-12 5-12
BASIS School, Flagstaff 2011-12 3-12
BASIS School, Peoria 2011-12 5-12
BASIS School, Tucson North 2012-13 5-12
BASIS School, Phoenix 2012-13 5-12
BASIS School, Ahwatukee 2013-14 4-12
BASIS School, Mesa 2013-14 3-12
BASIS School, Oro Valley Primary 2014-15 K-5
BASIS School, Prescott 2014-15 K-12
BASIS School, Phoenix Central 2014-15 K-8
BASIS School, Chandler Primary South 2015-16 K-4
BASIS School, Goodyear 2015-16 6-10
BASIS School, Goodyear Primary 2015-16 K-5
BASIS School, Scottsdale Primary 2015-16 K-3
BASIS School, Chandler Primary North 2016-17 K-4
BASIS School, Peoria Primary 2017-18 K-4
BASIS School, Phoenix South Primary 2017-18 K-2
BDC 2012-13 5-12
BTX (3 schools) 2013-14 K-12




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

The significant accounting policies of the Firm are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation: Generally accepted accounting principles require the Firm to
consolidate entities in which it has control and an economic interest when that control is evidenced
through majority ownership or voting interests. The Firm is the sole member/owner of BDC, BTX,
and BBR, therefore consolidation is required. The consolidated financial statements include the
-accounts of the Firm, BDC, BTX, and BBR. During the year-ended June 30, 2018, BBR did not
have any financial activity. All significant inter-organization balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Basis_of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) topic of
Not-for-Profit Entities. The Firm is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted
net assets, and permanently restricted net assets: The Firm does not have any pérmanently
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018,

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liahilities, the disciosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions: The Firm follows the FASB ASC subtopic of Revenue Recognition for Not-for-
Profit Entities. Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
permanently restricted support based on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All
donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily restricted or ‘permanently
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a donor restriction expires,
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions (see Note 6).

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Firm considers all highly liquid investments with initial
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.




BASIS. Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

Due from Govemment: Due from government consists mainly of state approved payments. to the
Firm to operate the charter schools and féderal grants passed through the State of Arizona. The
Firm has never experienced any losses due to non-payment, expects none on the June 30, 2018
balances, and therefore has not established an allowance for uncollectibility.

Other Receivables: Other receivables consists of miscellaneous receivables due to the Firm that
will be collected during the fiscal year subsequent to June 30, 2018,

Prepaid Expenses: Prepaid expenses consists of goods'-andfor services purchased before June 30,
2018 that are to be used subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Loan Issuance Costs: Loan issuance costs and origination fees are deferred and amortized over the
term of the associsted loans and are included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as an offset to the related debt (see Note 5). During the year ended June 30, 2018, $731,707 of loan
issuance costs were written off as part of debt refinancing.

Property and_Equipment: Property and equipment with an initial cost of $300 or more and an
estimated life of one year or more are capitalized. In addition, textbooks are always capitalized and
considered a separate asset class. Assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is
provided on the sfraight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the respective

assets:

Buildings and improvements 40 years

Vehicles, furniture and equipment 3-5 years

Textbooks 3 years

Software 3 years

Leasehold improvements Lesser of the estiinated useful life or

remaining term of applicable lease

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue represents amounts collected but not earned as of June 30,
2018.

Deposits Held For Others: Deposits held for others consists of student deposits required for the use
of textbooks.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $534,004 for the year ended
June 30, 2018.




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

Expense Allocation: The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes: The Firm and its subsidiaries are exempt from federal and state income taxes as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and similar state provisions.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricted cash consists of required deposits associated with the long-term debt (sce Note 5). The
tax and insurance funds shall be used to pay real property taxes and premiums for the required
insurance policies. The debt service reserve funds shall be used if the Firm is unable to make
payments when due. The project funds shall be used to complete construction on the new
campuses and furnishings and renovations to existing campuses. The bond funds shall be used to
pay the interest coming due. The accounts are held by Bank of Arizona as trustee.

Restricted cash as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Debt service reserve funds $ 22,903,245
Repair and replacement funds 48,377
Tax and insurance funds 2,729
Project funds 46,740,762
Bond funds - 4.859.329

Total $ 74.554.442

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Firm maintains its unrestricted cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions,
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, such cash and
cash equivalents may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The Firm has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and management believes it is not exposed to any significant risks related
to these accounts.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2018

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment at June 30, 2018 consists of the following:

Land and improvements $ 53,512,734
Buildings and leasehold improvements 155,616,117
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 12,163,090
Textbooks 6,211,335
Software 261,264
Construetion in progress 46,287.299

Total 274,051,839
Less accumulated depreciation 25.004.769
Property and equipment, net $249.047,070

Depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $7,196,494.

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2018

$1,725,250 promissory note payable to the City of Goodyear dated December
23, 2014. The loan matures over 30 years at an interest rate of 3.26%. Annual
interest only payments of $54,613 are due through December 2024, and annual
principal and interest payments of $114,125 start in January 2025. The note
matures in December 2044. The loan was used to purchase: real property for
BASIS Goodyear and BASIS Goodyear Primary and is secured by a deed of trust

on real property.

11
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1,675,250




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2015A) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona in the aggregate
principal amount of $89,140,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to & loan agreement, dated March 1, 2015, The loan matures over
30 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and
interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$370,000 to a maximum of $5,650,000 commencing on July 1, 2016. The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the followmg purposes: to (1) finance. and
refinance the costs of acquiring,. constructmg, improving and equipping various
campuses, (ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide
security for the Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on aportion of the Bonds,

and (iv) pay certain issuance expenses. related to the Borids. The loan is secured
by BASIS Chandler, Flagstaff, Goodyear, Goodyear Primary, Oro Valley,
Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale, Tucson North, and Tucson Primary (the Obligated
Schools'), and all subsequent entrants into the Obligated Group's revenue
received from the State of Arizona under the Obligated Schools charters, and a
deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated Schools sites. These
Bonds were sold at a premium of $1,341,705, which is included in the
unamortized net premium.

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2016A) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona in the aggregate
principal amount of $84,160,000. The proceeds. of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated January 1, 2016. The loan matures over
30 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and
interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$690,000 to a maximum of $11,110,000, commencing on July 1, 2017. The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance and
refinance the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various
campuses, (ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide
security for the Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the Bonds,
and (iv) pay certain issuance expenses related to the Bonds. The loan is secured
by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received from the
State of Arizona and the District of Columbia under the Obligated Schools
charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated Schools
sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are BASIS DC, BASIS
Chandler Primary North, Oro Valley Primary, and Scottsdale Primary These
Bonds were sold at a premium of $1,097.887, which is included in the
unamortized net premium.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017A and 2017B) were issued by
the Arizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount
of $75,960,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated February 1, 2017, The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 4.00% and 5.375%. Annual principal :and interest
payments vary, and principal payments range from a minitnum of $225,000 to a
maximum of $10,460,000, commencing on July 1, 2017. The loan proceeds
were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i} finance and refinance
the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various campuses,
(ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide security for the
Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the Bonds, and (iv) pay
certain issuance expenses related to the Bonds. The loan ‘is secured by the
existing and newly-entered Obligated Schools revenue received from the State of
Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of Texas under the Obligated
Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated
Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are BASIS Chandler
Primary South, Peoria Primary, Phoenix Central, Phoenix South Primary,
Prescott, and San Antonio North Central. These Bonds were sold at a discount of
$227,672, which is included in the unamortized net premium/discount,

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017C, 2017D, and 2017E) were
issued by the Arizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate
principal amount of $43,715,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated October 1, 2017. The loan matures
over 34 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.25%. Annual principal
and interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$155,000 to a maximum of $14,365,000, commencing on July 1, 2018, The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the
costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various campuses, (ii}
pay capitalized interest on a portion of the bonds, (iii) fund all or a portion of the
Debt Service Reserve Funds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. The
loan is secured by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue
received from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of
Texas under the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property
located at the Obligated Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated
Group are BASIS Ahwatukee and San Antonio Shaveno. These Bonds were
sold at a premium of $1,415,975, which is included in the unamortized net
premium/discount.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017F and 2017G) were issued by the
Atizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount of
$57,455,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated December 1, 2017. The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and interest paymerits
vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of $110,000 to a maximum
of $3,405,000, commencing on July 1, 2018. The loan proceeds were used by the
Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the costs of acquiring,
constructirig, improving and equipping various campuses, (ii) pay capitalized
interested on a portion of the Bonds, (iii )fund all or a portion of the Debt
Service Reserve Funds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds, The loan
is seciired by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received
from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of Texas under
the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the
Obligated Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are
BASIS Mesa, Phoenix Primary, and San Antonio Medical Center. These Bonds
were sold at a premium of $5,054,153 which is included in the unamortized net
premium/discount.

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2018A) were issued by the Arizona
Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount of
$16,295,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated March 1, 2018. The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 6.00% and 6.375%. Annual principal and interest
payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of $440,000 to a
maximum of $1,365,000, commencing on July 1, 2024. The loan proceeds were
used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the costs of acquiring,
constructing, improving and equipping, as applicable the Baton Rouge campus
(ii) pay capitalized interested on the bonds (iii ) fund a portion of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. The loan is
secured by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received
from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, the State of Texas, and the
State of Louisiana under the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on
real property located at the Obligated Schools sites. The newest member of the
Obligated Group is BASIS Baton Rouge. These Bonds were sold at a discount of
$235,254 which is included in the unamortized net premium/discount.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The Firm has an unsecured $500,000 line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank, of
which $500,000 was outstanding at June 30, 2018. The line of credit agreement

is subject to annual renewal. Interest is payable monthly at 6.75%. 500,000
Total 366,045,250
Plus unamortized net ptemium/discount 8,121,147
Less unamortized loan issuance costs 8,406,308
Less current maturities 4,405.001

$361.354.588

The aggregate future minimum payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2019 : $ 4,405,001
2020 4,180,000
2021 4,390,000
2022 5,125,000
2023 5,290,000
Thereafter 342.655.249
366,045,250

Plus unamortized net premium/discount : 8,121,147 -
Less unamortized loan issuance costs 8,406,808
$365.759.589

Under the loan agreements, the Firm is required to comply with certain financial covenants. At
June 30, 2018 the Firm was in compliance with those covenants.

NOTE 6 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Firm received temporarily restricted contributions totaling $8,486,939, and disbursed
$6,523,271 from these contributions during the year ended June 30, 2018, for extracurricular
activities and the Annual Teacher Fund.

At June 30, 2018, $6,874,119 remained in net assets temporarily restricted for the Annual Teacher
Fund.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Approximately 65% of the Firm's revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018 was derived from the
State of Arizona through payments of State Equalization, Classroom Site Funds (Proposition 301),
State of Arizona grants, and federal grants passed through the State of Arizona. Non-federal funds
that are paid from the State of Arizona are subject to funding apptroval from the state legislature.
Changes in state funding levels for charter schools could have a significant impact on the Firm's
revenues.

Approximately 60% of the Firm's total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018 were paid to
BASIS.ed for leased employee costs and approximately 11% were paid to BASIS.ed for
management services fees.

NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASES
The Firm entered into leases for some of its school sites under the provisions of long-term lease

agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expense under these leases was $88,000 for the
year ended June 30, 2018. Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2019 $ 662,026
2020 858,065
2021 858,065
2022 566,865
2023 566,865
Thereafier 14,738.490

$ 18.250.376
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance: The Firm's compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review by the
State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and Department of Education. Such reviews could
result in adjustments or withholding of State Equalization assistance.

Commitments: The Firin has entered into agreements with BASIS.ed to provide charter school
management, teaching services and administrative services for each of its schools, with various
expiration dates through June 30, 2020. Under terms of the management agreement with
BASIS.ed, the Firm incurred $91,399,292 for leased employee costs and $16,704,331 in
management services fees, which comprise of three services categories including management
services, operational services, and financial services. The fees are based on revenues and aré
adjusted for cost-of-living and growth in revenues in subsequent years.

Durinig the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the Firm began construction and renovations to
various campuses. As of June 30, 2018, the Firm had $46,287,299 in construction in progress
related to these campuses, with remaining commitments of approximately $11,000,000 to
complete the projects.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Firm has evaluated subsequent events through January 31, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and has concluded that no events have occurred since the
year ended June 30, 2018 that would require an adjustment to or disclosure in the financial

statements.
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ABSETS
Cirrent assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from government
Duc from related party
‘Otlier receivables
Prepaid expenses
Prepatd debt service
Restricted cash, current
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Prepoid expenses, noncurrent
Restricted cash, noncurrent
Property and equipment; net
‘Deposits
‘Total nongurrént assets

Total assets

BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS {DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued construétioh tosts
Deferred revenue
‘Due 1o related party
Deposils held for others
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current Jiabilities

Long-term debi, net
Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted
Total net asséts (deficit)

Total liabilities and net'assets (deficit)

June 30,2018
BSI BDC BTX
$ 13,838,740 % 1,584,320 % 1,842,176
1,134,391 80,867 2,518,349
341,111
406,680 71,363 25,114
2,186,892 11,885 102,251
4,405,001
18,506,100 _ _
40,818,915 1,748,435 4,491,850
2,589,593
56,048,342
248,131,293 482,104 433,673
334,113 1,375 45.000
307,103,343 481.479 478,673
$  347,922.258 | 2231914 4,970,563
3 11,982,601 % 308,720 3 1,257,690
15,195,665
1,755,068 11,837
_ 309,105 32,006
2,324,970 8,760
4,405,001 _
35,663,305 629,662 1,208,456
361,354,588 _
397,017,893 629,662 1,298,456
(55,336,497 1,401,824 3,239,278
6.240.862 200,428 432,829
(49.095.635) 1,602 252 3.672.107
$ 347,922,258 § 2231914 § 4,970,563

See independent auditors' report,
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Revenue and support:
State revenues
Federal révenues
Local revenues
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue and support

Expenses:
Primary and secondary education
General and administrative
Fundraising
Total expenses

Change in net assets (deficit) before unrealized loss and write-
off of loan issuance costs.and prepaymerit penalties

Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties
Change in-net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year
Net assets {deficit), end of year-

BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30,2018
BSL
Temporarily ‘
Unrestrigted Restricted Subiotal’ Unrestricted

$ 93,452,882 § 93,452,882 % 9,290,797
1,738,689 1,738,689 150,671
15,733,501 % 7,645,929 23,379,430 289,188
5,829,191 (5,829.191) 110,129
116,754,263 1,816,738 118,571,001 9,840,785
105,569,491 105,569,491 8,913,197
19,354,586 19,354,586 637,756
952,524 952,524 61,199
125,876.601 125,876,601 9.612,152
(9,122,338) 1,816,738 (7.305,600) 228,633

{5.015.513) (5.015.513)
(14,137,851} 1,816,738 (12,321.113) 228,633
(41,198.646) 4,424 124 {36,774,522) 1,173.191

_$ (55.336,497) $ 6240862 § {49.095,635) § 1,401,824

See independent auditors' report.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2018
(CONTINUED)
BTX Eliminations
Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Subtotal Total Unrestricted

Revenue and support:

State reveniies $ 17,773,345 5 17,773,345 5 120,517,024

Federal revenues 234907 _ 234,907 _ 2, 124,267

Local reveiiues 2,113,579 § 692,727 2,806,306 § (3,735,886) 14,400,382

Net assets released from restrictions 583,951 __{583.951) _ 6523271

Total revenue and support 20,705,782 108,776 20,814,558 (3,735,886) 143,564,944

Expenses:

Primary 'and secondary education 17,010,775 17,010,775 (3,061,245} 128,432,218

General and administrative 3,346,756 3,346,756 {674,641) 22,664,457

Fundraising 70,875 70.875 1.084.598

‘Total expenses 20,428.406. 20,428.406 (3,735.886) 152,181,273

Change in net assets (deficit) before

wnrealized loss and write-off of lpan _ o _ _

issuance ¢osts and prepayment penalties 277,376 108,776 386,152 '(R,616,329)
Write-off of 1oan issuance costs and

prepayment penalties (5.015,513)
-Change in net assets (deficit) 277,376 108,776 386,152 (13,631,842)
Net nssels (deﬁcit), beginning of year 2.961.902 324,053 3,285,935 37.063.553)

3 3239278 % 432,829 § 3.672,107 § 5 {50,695.395)

Net asscts {deficit), cnd of year Bepe 8 Ao, il e sl

See independent auditors' report.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.,

OBLIGATED GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018
Obligated
Group (Existing
Memibers)!
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 17,169,659
Other current assets 7.025.695
Total current assets 24,195,354
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net 249,047,070
Other noncurrent assets 77.693.568
Total noncurrent assets __326.740.638
Total assets _ $ 350.935.992

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses. $ 24912222
Other current liabilities 8.891.254
Total current liabilities 33,803,476

Long-term debt 361,023,266

Total liabilities 394,826,742
Net assets (deficit) (43.890.750)
Total liabilities and net assets (deficit) $ 350.935.992

(1)Represents the resuls of the Pledged Schools financed as part of the Series 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018

Bonds.

See independent auditors' report.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

OBLIGATED GROUP STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Obligated Non Total Obligated
Group (Existing  Eliminating  Group (Existing.
Members)! Items Members)!
Revenues: _
State revenues $ 120,517,025 $ 120,517,025
Federal revenues 2,045,924 2,045,924
Local revenues 21,447,755 §  2.377.552 23.825.307
Total revenue and support 144,010,704 2,377,552 146,388,256
Expenses:
Salaries and payroll 90,984,349 90,984,349
Management fees 16,704,331 16,704,331
Other operating 91,290,243 2,377,552 23,667,795
Depreciation 7,187,212 7,187,212
Bond interest and amortization 14.463.115 14:463.115
Total expenses 150,629,250 2,377,552 153,006,802
Change in net assets (deficit) before non-recurring (6,618,546) (6,618,546)
expenses
Non-recurting expenses? (5,015.513) (5.015.513)
Change in net assets (deficit) (11,634,059) (11,634,059)
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (32,256 691} (32.256,691)
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ (43.890.750) $ ¥ (43.890.750)

(1)Represents the results of the Pledged Schools financed as part of the Series 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018

Bonds.
(2)Non-recurring expenses reflect non-cash expensing of certain debt issuance and refunding prepayment

penalties related to the issuance of the 2017 and 2018 Bonds.

See indcpcndent‘auditors' report.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Chaiter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of BASIS
Charter Schools, Iric. (the Firm), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statemients of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 31, 2019. Our report includes a teference to other auditors who audited the
financial .statements. of BDC, a Public Charter School, Inc. and BTX Schools, Inc., as described in our
report on the Firm’s consolidated finaricial statements. This report does not include the results of the other
auditors® testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are
reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Firm's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm ’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Firm's consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions: of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests:disclosed no instances of noncomipliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fester & Chragman, PLLC.

January 31, 2019
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; Report on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.'s {the Firm) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described. in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the Firm's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Firm's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of the auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Firm’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cosi Principles, and Audit Requirements jor
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards ‘and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and niaterial effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Firm’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as: we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Firm’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

[n our opinion, the Firm complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
3
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Firm is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our

audit of compliance, we considéred the Finn's intemal control over compliance with the types of

requirements that could tiave a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for thé purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal contrel over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but mot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of iriternal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Firm's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of .compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliarice with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identifted.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniiform Guidance, Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

i
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Finn as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2019, which coritained an unmodified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements, The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the undérlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing ‘standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In .our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Fester « Crogman, PLLC.

January 31, 2019
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Pass-
_ Through Passed
Federal Granfor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grauntor's Through to
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S, Department of Agriculture
Passed through Arizona Department.of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program (SBP) 10,553 Various  § 11,867 §
National School! Lunch Program (NSLP) 10.555 Various 66477
‘Fotal Child Nutrition Cluster 78,344
Total U.S. Department of Agricuiture 78.344
U.S. Depariment of Education
Passed tbrough Arizona Department of Education
Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Various 77,658
Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 Various 1.367.598
Total Special Education Cluster 1,367,598
Charter Schools 84.282 Various 209,392
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 Various 5,238
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
(formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 Various 460
Total U.S. Department of Education 1.660.346
$ 1738690 $

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to this schedule.




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2018
NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompan_)iing scheduie of exp_cnd_itures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. (the Firm), and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this

schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the consolidated
financial statements,

NOTE 2 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2018 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance Update.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Firm has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS

The Firm did not pass any funds onto subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2018,




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2018
SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of Auditors’ Report issued: Unmodified
Yes No
Material weaknesses identified in inteinal control over financial reporting? X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? X (None reported)
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? X

Federal Awards

Material weakness identified in interal control over major programs? X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? X (None reported)
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? X

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
_ Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
84.027 Special Education_Grants to States

84.282 Charter Schools

Doliar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X
Other Matters:

Auditee's Summary Schedule of Prior Findings required to be reported in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.511(b)? X




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were identified that were required to be reported.

SECTION I11I - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were identified that were required to be reported.




BASIS Charter Schoaols - Mesa
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

‘To the Board of Directors
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. Re. BASIS Mesa (07-82-25-000)
Mesa, Arizona

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Arizona State Board for
Charter Schools (the specified party), solely to assist you with respect to compliance of BASIS Charter
Schools; Inc. Re. BASIS Mesa (07-82-25-000) (the Firm) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018. The
Firm’s management is responsible for compliance. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was
conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American' Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of those parties
specified in the report. Consequently, we make no. representation regarding the sufficiency of the
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other

purpose,

Our procedures and findings are included in the following 6/18 version of the Legal Compliance
Questionnaire,

We were not engaged to, and did not, conduct an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of
an opinion on the Firm's compliance. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. Had we
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been
reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and the Arizona State

Board for Charter Schools and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those
specified parties.

Fester « Cragmman, PLLC.

February 26, 2019
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Arizona State Board for Charter Schools
Legal Compliance Questionnaire
Charter/CTDS: BASIS Mesa (076225000)
Fiscal Year Ended: June 30, 2018
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INSTRUCTIONS

NOTE: This questionnaire should only be used for charters that are exempt from the Uniform System of
Financial Records for Arizona Charter Schools (charters that HAVE an exception), If a charter is subject to
procurement requirements pursuant to A.R.S. §§15-189.02 and 41-2535(A), this questionnaire should be
used in conjunction with the Procurement Compliance Questionnaire (see audit guidelines) which is
available on the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools’ website htipsy/asbcs.az.gov.

In order to determine whether a charter that is exempt from the requirements of the Uniform System of
Financial Records for Arizona Charter.Schools (USFRCS) is complying with applicable legal requirements, the
auditors must complete the following Legal Compliance Questionnaire in accordance with both the agreed
upon procedures (instructions contained herein) and the attestation standards established by the American
Institute of Certified Public- Accountants. (Note: This ‘questionnaire is not comprehensive of all legal
requirements for charter schools. As-such, this document should not be the sole reference to determine all
laws and regulations that are applicable to charter schools).

The following prescribed minimum agréed upon. procedures, as well as those identified throughout the
questionnaire, must be used for completing the Legal Compliance Questionnaire in accordance with the
attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The State Board
for Charter Schools may reject questionnaires not meeting these standards.

. Sufficient, appropriate evidence must be obtained annually for each question to satisfactorily
determine whethet the charter complies with the legal requirements, and the evidence must be
included in the documentation.

. Evidence may be obtained through test work, observation, examination, and client assertion. However,
client assertion alone is not adequate evidence:to support “Yes” answers to the questionnaire.

. Population size should be considered in determining the number of items to test, -and the items
selected should be representative of the population.

. The number of items tested must be sufficient to determine whether a deficiency was the result of an
isolated incident or a recurring problem, Therefore, testing one transaction, record, or item is not
sufficient.

. The sample size should be expanded if the audit firm cannot clearly determine whether the charter

complies with the legal requirements of the question.
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If sufficient evidence has been obtained and documented during the current audit, that evidence may
be referenced to answer questions.

All “No” and “NfA"” answers must be adequately explained in the comments column or in an
attachment. Findings must be described in sufficient detail to enable the State Board for Charter
Schools to describe the finding in a letter. The description should include the number of items tested
and the number of exceptions noted.

A “Yes” answer indicates that the audit firm has detetrmined that the charter complies with the legal
requirements of the question and a “No” answer indicates the charter does not comply. However, the
final determination of compliance on each question, as well as overall compliance with legal
requirements, is made by the State Board for Charter Schools based on the evidence presented in the
questionnaire, audit reports, resulting documentation, and any other sources.

The -resulting documentation supporting the audit firm's answers to the Legal Compliance Quéstionnaire
must be made available on request for review by the State Board for Charter Schools. To facilitate this review,
the audit firm may wish to iriclude in the.documentation a copy of the questionnaire containing references to
procedures performed for each question.
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Legal Compliance Questionnaire!

Questions/Subject Area

Yeé/No '

omments

[Personnel

1.

§15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512 (H)

Did the school have valid fingerprint clearance cards (FCC) for,
100% of the required personnel as of the testing date? A.R.S.

Yes

(QUESTIONS #2a THROUGH 2c ONLY APPLY TO NEW HIRES
REQUIRED PURSUANT TO A.RS. §15-183(C)(5) TO HAVE VALID
FCCS AND DO NOT APPLY IF AN INDIVIDUAL'S FCC HAS
EXPIRED.)

2.

For each individual referericed in #1 that did riot have a valid
FCC, please provide the following information (provide
supplemental pages, if necessary) (See agency guidance)
available on ‘the Board's website prior to completing these
questions) A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5):

a. Was an application for a FCC on file with the Department of]
Public Safety (DPS) as of the testing date?

N/A

All personinel had FCC's

b. Did DPS receive the application prior to the hire date?

N/A

JAll personnel had FCC's

c. Prior to placement, did the school do all of the following?

i) Document the necessity for hiring/placing the
individual prior to receiving a FCC?

N/A

All personnel had FCC's

ii) Obtain statewide criminal history information on the
individual?

N/A

All personnel had FCC's

ifi) Obtain references from the applicant’s current and
previous employers?

N/A

All personnel had FCC's

Did the charter school maintain up-to-date fingerprints of all
Governing Body members as of the testing date? Charter
Contract?

Yes

Were all other personnel fingerprint checked as of the testing
date? A.R.S. §15-183 (C)(5) and A.R.S. §15-512

Yes

Did the charter school inform the patents and guardians of
pupils enrolled in the school of the availability of information
about the educational and teaching background and experience
in a particular academic content subject area for all current
employees who provide instruction to pupils? A.R.S. §15-183 (F)

Yes

| For the purposes of this questionnaire, please note that “Goveming Body" means the group of persons required
by A.R.8, §15-183(E)(8) that is responsible for policy decisions of the charter school. The term “Goveming
Board” means the group of persons that the charter holder has assigned the responsibility addressed by the
question. The applicable group of persons may be the Governing Body or the officers, directors, members or
partners of the charter holder. The applicable group of persons may vary depending on the issie addressed by the

question.

? Specific contract ¢éites could not be provided as term references vary per contract year.

6/18




Questions/Subject Area

Yes/No

Comments

equired Filings

1.

Is the school in good standing with the following regulatory
bodies:

a. Internal Revenue Service U.S.C, Title 26

i

For payroll taxes, income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any payroll or income taxes
payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year end
(June 30%) is a true statement.

Yes

. If the response to l.a.i, l.aii; or both is "no", does the
school have .a payment plan in place with the Internal

Reveénue Service?

N/A

See questions i. and ii.
above

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.a.iii is "yes", has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment
plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 30")?

N/A

Gee question iii. above

Arizona Department of Revenue A.R.S. §\43-4:01I and §43-
1111

i.

For payroll taxes, state income taxes (if applicable) and
applicable tax forms required to be filed during the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

ii.

The 'school did not have any payroll or income taxes-

payable from a prior year(s) as of audited fiscal year end
(June 30') is a true statement.

Yes

iii.

If the response to 1.b.i, 1.b.ii, or both is 'no", does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Revenne?

N/A

See questions i. and ii.
above

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.b.iii is "yes", has the school
made all of the required paymerits under the payment
plan asof audited fiscal year end (June 30%)?

N/A

Bee question iii. above

¢. Arizona Department of Economic Security A.R.S. § 23-721 et
seq.

i.

State unemployment contributions requirements for the
audited fiscal year?

Yes

The school did not have any state unemploymen
contributions payable from a prior year(s) as of audited
fiscal year end (June 30'™) is a true statement.

Yes

jit.

If the response to 1l.ci, 1.cii, or both is "no", does the
school have a payment plan in place with the Arizona
Department of Economic Security?

N/A

See questions i. and ii.
above

iv.

If the answer to Question 1.c.iii is "yes", has the school
made all of the required payments under the payment

N/A

plan as of audited fiscal year end (June 301)?

See question iii. above
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Questions/Subject Area

Yes/No

Comments

d. Corporation Commission (e.g., annual report)? Charterf Yes

Contract

2. Was a copy of the adopted budget submitted electronically to

the Superintendent of Public Instruction no later than July 187
A.R.S. §15-905 (E) and §15-183 (E)(6)

. Yes

Was ‘the Annual Financial Report {AFR) sent to ‘the
Superintendent of Public Instruction by October 15%? A.R.S.
§15-183 (E)(6) and 15-904 (A)

Yes

Did the school maintain records to support the number of
eligible teachers, eligible teachers' salaries, and employer share
of retirement expense to appropriately calculate and distribute
the 1.06% teacher salary increase? (Laws 2017, Chapter 305, §33)

Yes

Special Education

1.‘

Is the staff the school uses to provide special education services
(internal or contracted) certified in special education?

Yes

2.

Does the school conduct 45 day screenings on all new students?
AAC R7-2401

Yes

Are evaluations and IEPs on file for special education students?]

34 CFR 300.341-350 and 300.531-536

Yes

Classroom Site Fund - A.R.S. §15-977 & OAG Memorandum No.

1.

Did the school properly allocate Classroom Site Fund receipts
among the following projects: 1011—Base Salary (20%),
1012 — Performance Pay (40%), and 1013 — Other (40%)?

Yes

For Project 1011, were expenses only for teacher base salary
increases and employment-related expenses?

Yes

For Project 1012, were expenses only for performance-based
teacher compensation increases and employment-related
expenses?

Yes

teacher compensation increases, AIMS intervention programs,

For Project 1013, were expenses only for class size reduction,

teacher development, dropout prevention programs, and
teacher liability insurance premiums?

Yes

Did the school use Classroom Site Fund monies to supplement
rather than supplant, existing funding from all other sources?
(See USFRCS Memorandum No. 44 for guidance on the
Classroom Site Fund.}

Yes

If the school had monies remaining at year-end, were they
properly carried forward in the three Classroom Site Projects
(1011, 1012, and 1013) to help ensure that the restrictions placed|
on the original allocation of revenues is applied in future years?

Yes

Did the school have sufficient cash at year-end to cover the carry|
over monies, and what was the Classroom Site Fund cash

Yes
$0

carryover balance at year-end?
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Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments.

{Student Attendance Reporting I l

f test work performed in this section discloses a net overstatement or understatement of membership
and/or absence days, based on AR,S. and ADE's school finance external guidelines, report the net
overstatement or understatement in the “Comments” column next to each applicable question.

1, Was school in session for at least 180 days or did the Governing|  Yes
Board adopt a calendar with an equivalent number of minutes
of instruction per ‘school year based on a different number of
days of instruction? A.R.S. §15-341.01

2. Did the school ensure that [A.R.S. §§15-808(J)(1), 15-901(A)(1)|
and 15-901.07]:
(Note: Instructional hours for common school students do not
include periods of the day in which an instructional program o
course of study is not being offered, including, but not limited,
to, lunch, recesses, home room petiods, study hall periods, and
eatly release or late start hours: Instructional hours for high
school students includes regularly scheduled class periods
intended for instructional purposes which may include core)
subjects, elective subjects, lunch, study halls, music instruction,
and other classes that advance the academic instruction of
pupils, except that instructional purposes shall not include
athletic practices or extracurricular clubs and activities.) ADE's
External Guideline GE-18
a. Preschool children with disabilities were enrolled in @ N/A [No preschool children

program that met at least 360 minutes a week that meets a
least 216 hours over the minimum number of days?
b. Kindergarten was in session for at least 356 hours or 34§ N/A Bchoolis grades 3-12
hours for Arizona Online Instruction (AOI) Programs?
c. Grades 1 through 3 werein session for at least 712 hours? Yes
d. Grades 4 through 6 were in session for at least 890 hours? Yes
e, Grades 7 and 8 were in session for at least 1,000 hours off Yes
1,068 hours for AOI Programs?
f. Grades 9 through 12, other than AOI Programs, were inf Yes
session at least 720 hours?
g. Grades 9 through 12, other than AQIl Programs or those Yes
students enrolled in concurrent coursework, include at least
four subjects, each of which if taught each school day for the
minimum number of days required in a school year, would
meet a minimum of 123 hours a year?
h. Grades 9 through 12 of AOI Programs include at least fouy N/A [Program not offered by,
courses throughout the year that meet at least 900 hours school

during the school year?
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Questions/Subject Area

Yes/No

Comments

i. Grades ¢ through 12 students enrolled in concurrent
coursework; attended at least four subjects? At least one
subject must be tanght at the school per semester and, if

N/A

taught each school day for the minimum number of day
required in a school year, would meet a minimum of 12
hours a year. Students must earn 3 semester hours of credi
or more for subjects taught at the community college o
university.

ogram not offered by
chool

For Student Attendance Reporting questions, the audit firm must select and test the specified number of
ftransactions (records, entries, withdrawals, or days) as shown in the sample size instructions before each section
These samples should include 3 or more grade levels and 3 or more campuses, where applicable. The listed sampl¢
‘sizes represent the minimum level of required fest work. The audit firm should use its judgment in determining
hether a larger sample is needed. All student attendance records tested should be selected from the 100" day

eporting period.

n the parentheses provided within the questions, write the actual number of transactions tested. If all transactions|
ere tested, indicate such in the “Comments”. columin.

For questions 3-5 select at least 3 student attendance records.

3.

If the school had an early (pre-)kindergarten program, based|
upon review of 0.early (pre-) kindergarten students’ attendance
records, did the school only calculate and submit
membership/absence information for this program for students
with disabilities? A.R.S. §15-901(A)}{(1}{a)(i) and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

Program not offered by
school

Based upon review of 0 students’ attendance records in
kindergarten programs, if the instructional time for the year was
between 356 and 692 hours, were students not in attendance foy]
at least three-quarters of the day counted as being absent or, if
the instructional time for the year was 692 hours or more, were)
students not in attendance at least one-half of the day counted|
as being absent? A.R.S. §§15-901(A)(1)(a)(i) and 154
901(A)(5)(a) ()

N/A

School is grades 3-12

If the school had an early first grade program, based upon
review of 0 early first grade students’ attendance records, did|
the school calculate and submit membership/absence
information for this program as it would for kindergarten?
A.R.S. §§15-901(A)(1)(a)(i) and 15-901(A)(5)(a)(i), and USFRCS
Memorandum No. 33

N/A

Program not offered by
lschool
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Questions/Subject Area ' | Yes/No

Comments

For giiestions 6 and 7, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
< 1,000 5
1,000 - 5,000 10
> 5,000 15

6. Based upon review of 5 students’ attendance records af
elementary and junior high schools in which attendance was
based on half days, were students in attendance for less than|

students in attendance for at least one-half day, but less than|
three-quarters of a day, counted as being absent for one-half
day; and were students in attendance for at least three-quarter
of a day counted in attendance for a day? A.R.S. §15
901(A)(5)(b}(ii)

one-half the day counted as being absent for one full day; were "

Yes

7. Based upon review of 0 students’ attendance records at
elementary and junior high schools where attendance was based,
on quarter days, were students in attendance for more than,
three-quarters of the day counted ‘in attendance for a day and|
students in attendance for three-quarters of the day or les
counted in attendance for each quarter of the day in attendance?,
AR.S. §15-901(A)(5)(b)(i)

N/A

Attendance is baséd .on half
days

For questions 8 through 15, use the following sample sizes:

Student Attendance
SCHOOLWIDE ADM Records
«<1,000 3
1,000 - 5,000 5
> 5000 7

8. For schools approved to report minutes of attendance, based|
upon review of the attendance records for a 1 month period for
0 students whose attendance was reported in minutes, did the
school report minutes of attendance only for actual classroom
instruction atténded by the students?

N/A

Attendance reported in
terms of absences

9. Based upon review of 3 high school students' attendance
records, whose attendance was reported in terms of absences,
for all absence days reported in a 1 month period, did the school
report absences in accordance with the method(s) provided by
ADE?

Yes
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Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments

10. Based upon review of 0 high school students’ attendancd N/A |No students enrolled in less
records, did the school prorate the membership of the studen than four subjects
enrolled in less than four subjects?

11. For students enrolled in a program provided by a JTED in
facility owned and operated by a school:

a. For schools- Based on a review of 0 students' attendance) N/A [Program not offered by
records, did the school report the actual enrollment and ~schbol
attendance data for only the school classes the student wa
enrolled in at that school (excluding JTED program classes)
under the school's CTDS number?
b. For schools-Based on the review :of 0 students attendance] N/A [Program not offered by
records for all absence days reported in a 1 month period, school
did the school calculate absences in -accordance with the
method(s) provided by ADE and based on the number of]
school classes the student was errolled in and attended
(excluding FTED programs classes)?
[Note: Total membership claimed for the school and the
JTED satellite locations for each student should not exceed|
1.25. A.R.S. §15-393(0)] '

12. For schools offering an AOI Program, based upon a review of 0
AOI students” attendance records for 4 weeks: (ADE's Policiesﬂ
and Procedures Manual, SF-0003-A0I Participation)

a. Was the guardian-approved or school computer-generated) N/A |Program not offered by
daily log desctibing the amount of time spent by the student school
on academic tasks maintained by the participating AO]
School? A.R.S. §15-808(E)

b. Did the hours reported to ADE agree to the guardian{ N/A [Program not offered by
approved or school computer-generated daily log? ischool

¢. Were all students who participated in an AOI Program]/ N/A [Program not offered by
residents of this state? A.R.S, §15-808(B) school

d. Was the student's Intended Full Time Equivalencyy N/A [Program not offered by
Enrollment Statement maintained? school

13. Based on review of the student's attendance records in question N/A [Program not offered by
12, did the school follow its procedures, to re-determine the school
actual FTE for each student enrolled in an AOI Program|
following a student's withdrawal or after the end of the school
year?

14. Based upon review of 0 students’ attendance records (all grades) N/A [No students withdrawn for
for students withdrawn for having ten consecutive unexcused having ten consecutive
absences, was the student only counted in membership through unexcused absences
the last day of actual attendance or excused absence? A.R.S. §15
901(A)1)

6/18
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Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments
15. Based upon review of 5 students’ attendance records, does thel Yes

student's name entered in the student management system

match the name on the legal document on file? AR.5. §15-

828(D) _

For questions 16 and 17, use the following sample sizes:

3 Entries/Withdrawals
<1,000 5
1,000 - 5,000 10
> 5,000 15
16. Based upon review of 5 entries: {Note: Enrollment forms are not

required for continuing students at the same school.).

a. Were the entry dates-entered into the school’s computerized]  Yes
attendance system within 5 working days after the actual
date of entry and was documentation maintained to support
the date of data entry? '

b. Did the entry date in the computerized attendance system Yes
agree to the entry form? _

c. Did the teacher’s attendance registers, if used, and othel N/A |Attendance systemis
documentation support the entry date in the computerized completely electronic
attendance system? |

d. Did membership begin on the first day of actual attendanceg Yes
or, for continuing/pre-enrolled students, the first day that
classroom instructon was offered, provided that the
students actually attend within the first 10 days of school?

ADE's External Guideline GE-17
e. Did the -school obtain and maintain verifiable Yes
documentation of Arizona residency upon enrollment?
ARS. §15-802(B)(1) and ADE's Arizona Residencyj
Documentation Guidelines
17. If the school admitted students who were nonresidents of N/A |All are Arizona residents

Arizona, were the students excluded from the school's student

count and state aid calculations, as applicable? A.R.S. §15-823('L)

18. If the school admitted students who were nonresidents of N/A |All are Arizona residents

Arizona, was tuition charged, as applicable? A.R.S. §15-823

6/18
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Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments
19. Baséd upon review of 5 withdrawals:

a. Were the withdrawal dates entered into the school' Yes
computerized attendance system within 5 working day:
after the actual day of withdrawal and was decumentation
maintained te support the date of data entry? (Note: “Day of
withdrawal” for determining timely data entry means: a. the
later of the student’s withdrawal date or the day the school
is notified the student will not be returning; or b. the 10% day,
of unexcused absence for students withdrawn for having ten
consecutive unexcused absences.)

b. Did the withdrawal date in the computferized attendance| Yes
system agree to the withdrawal form? (Note: If the
computerized attendance system requires the school to input
the day following the withdrawal date for a student to be
counted in membership through the last day of actual
attendance or excused absence; the withdrawal date on. the
system should be the school day following the withdrawal
date on the form.)

c. Did the teachers’ attendance registers, if used, and othey N/A |Attendance system is
supporting documentation agree to the withdrawal date in completely electronic
the computerized attendance system?

d. Was an Official Notice of Pupil Withdrawal form prepared Yes
and retained for each withdrawal and signed by a school
administrator? A.R.S. §15 827

For question 20, use the following sample sizes:

SCHOOLWIDE ADM Days
< 1,000 3
1,000 - 5,000 5
5 7
20. Based upon review of 0 days for various campuses, grades, and N/A [Attendance system is
classes in the computerized attendance system, did the student completely electronic
absences from each day agree to the teachers’ attendance
registers, absence slips, or other supporting documentation, if
used?
21. Did the school have adequate electronic or manual controls in] Yes

place to ensure that any changes to the original record of

student attendance data were properly authorized and

documented, including the names or identification numbers of

the persons making and authorizing the changes?

12



Questions/Subject Area Yes/No Comments

22. Was the school's membership/absence information submitted Yes
to ADE electronically at least once every 20 school days for
membership and 60 days for absence information through the
last day of instruction? A.R.S. §§15-901(A)(1) and 15-1042(G)

23. Based upon review of the school’s 100th day informationl Yes
uploaded to ADE (AzEDS ADMI5 report shows the 100th .dayj
period ADM), did the membership and absenices agree to the
school’s computerized attendance system records? {Note: For an|
AQI Program, review year-end attendance information.)

Open Meeting Law A.R.S. § 38-431.01 and § 38-431.02 (See also)
Attorney General Opinion 100-009)

1. Did the school conspicuously post a statement on its websitd Yes
stating where all public notices of its meetings will be posted,
including the physical and electronic locations?

2. Did the school post all public meeting notices on its website? Yes

3. Did the school maintain a record of notices that includes a copy| Yes
of each notice that was posted and information regarding the
date, time and place of posting? -

4. Were notices and agenda of public meetings posted at least 24/  Yes
hours before the meeting?

5. Were written minhutes preparéed or a recording made ofq Yes

 Governing Body meéetings?
Insurance Requirements A.R.S. §15-183(M)
Does the school have the required insurance for liability and property| Yes
loss?
Tuition A.R.S. §15-185 (B)(6) (See also Attorney General
Opinion 198-007)
Did the school refrain from charging fees that may be considered Yes
tuition other than as provided for in ARS. §15-185(B)(6)
[nonresidents]?
[Records Management

1. Did the school retain records in accordance with the Generall Yes
Retention Schedules for Education - K-12 published by the Arizona
State Library, Archives and Public Records (based on the testing
conducted during the course of the audit)?
(www.azlibrary.gov/arm/ retention-schedules)

2. Was adequate documentation retained to support amounts in| Yes

the financial statements (if the school is not the primary
reporting entity - was adequate documentation retained to

support revenue and expenses in the charter school)?

6/18
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This Questionnaire was completed in accordance with the minimum standards as set forth in the instructions
.on pages 2 and 3.

Fester & Chapman, PLLC February 26, 2019
Audit Firm ' Date
v W Director
Preparer's:Signature (Audit Firm Representative} Title
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Az Corp. Commission
Jamizon core commssioN - WA AT

. 06314477
APR 16 2018
FILE NO. O
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

Pursuant to the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes § 10-11006, BASIS Schools, Inc.,
an Arizona nonprofit corporation, hereby adopts the following First Amendment to the Amended
and Restated Articles of Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc. and certifies as follows:

| B The name of the corporation as currently reflected in the records of the Arizona
Corporation Commission is “BASIS Schools, Inc.” and the Arizona Corporation Commission File
Number for the corporation is 0835764-0.

2. The filing of this First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc. includes a name change for the corporation to “BASIS
Charter Schools, Inc.”

3. The Resolution of the Board of Directors of BASIS Schools, Inc. which authorizes
the name change for the corporation from “BASIS Schools, Inc.” to “BASIS Charter Schiools,
Inc.,” and which is the basis for this First Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of
Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc., was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the
corporation on March 16, 2018, in the manner prescribed by the Arizona Revised Statutes. There
are no members of the corporation entitled to vote on amendments to the Articles of Incorporation.

4. The document attached hereto as Exhibit A constitutes and sets forth the text of the
amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of BASIS Schools, Inc.

_, DATED this {3 day of April, 2018.

- BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

Craig Barrett,
- ‘Chairman of the Board of Directors

By:




EXHIBIT A

TEXT OF AMENDMENT TO THE AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

The first sentence of Article I of the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of BASIS
Schools, Inc. is amended to read in its entirety as follows:

The name of the corporation shall be “BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.” (referred to herein as
the “Corporation™).
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AL CORPGMIIIEEJ GBMMISSIGN 04095375

DEC 10 201 Gt Nmsxghscuom, ,INC.
neloding Nanve Chavge to “Basiy Schoob, Inc*
O 33STH O ,

wd -

ool l;ursuant 1o the mmm;of Rcvis];o: Statiites 55&1‘0-11006 and 10-11007, BASIS
16, an Arizon coaporaﬂon.hm adopts the IlowmgAmmdedandRemted
Articles of Inoomomﬂonandcmﬂﬂasasfoﬂo

1. Thename of the corporation is *BASIS SCHOOL, INC.”

2. The filing of these Amended and Restated: Articles of Incorporation includes a
name.change for the corporation to “Basis Schools, Inc”

3.  'The Amendmentto the Afticles of Incorporation of the eotporation was filed with
the Arizona Corporation Commission on April 14,2004, at File No: 1 1565025030

4. The Articles of Incorparetion for the.corporation are being ameudad and restated
in their entirety as set forth in Exhibit “A” atiached hereto and incorporaled hersin by this
reference. '

5. The Amended and Restated Asticles of Incorpuration were adopted by the board
of directors of the- <otporation on Noveraber 14, 2012, in the inanner prescribed by the Arizotin
Nonprofit Corporation Act.. No othet person or group hes the right to vote on amendments or
restatemients of the Articles of Incorporation.

6. The Amended and Restated Articles of Ingomoration supamde the original.
Articles of Incotporation and all amendments and/or restatements thereto in thejr entirety,

Dated: Noveraber 14,2012
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EXHIBIT “A”

oF
BASIS SCHOOLS, INC.

The undersigned incorpomtos, desiring o form a npaprofit corporation under laws of the:

Stete of Arizona, hereby adopts the following Articles of Incorpo orafion.

. I.
Name and Place of Bustness

T main of th oorporation ghall he "BASIS SCHOOLS, ING." (referred 1o herei s the
(< oyporstion'). The inidal placs of business aud address for the Corparation will be 11485 North
136% Strest; Suite 109, Scotisdale, AZ 85259, but it will establish other principal places of business
and other offices at such other places, elther witkin ot withots the State of Arizons, as the Board of

IL
Purpose and Activities

This Corporation is 2 nopprofit organization zed and operated exclusively for
imeaning of Section 501(c)3) of

charftable, educational, literary, and-scientific purposes withjn the

the Internal. Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code™), of -cotresponding provision of any
future federa] tax laws. Within the foesining of Section S501(c)(3), the Corporation’s primary
mission 18 %0 provide its students with an acedemically excellent arid xigorous liberal arts coliege
preparstory education. for eleiticatary through high school grades in cherter schools. The
Carporation will operate muliiple campuses both located inside and outside of Arizona, Except as
‘otherwise provided in thicse Articles, the Corporation also may transact any and all lawful business
for which nonprofit corporations may be organized under the laws of Arlzons, s emended fom

m.
Limitation on Activities

(8)  No part of the net earnings of the Comporation shall inure to the benefit of or be
distributable to its directors, officers, or other private persons, except thet the Corporation shall be
authorized and empowered to pay reasonable. compensation for services rendered and tp niake
peyments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article I hersof. No
substantial part of the Corporation's astivities shall be the carrying on of propaganda or otharwise
attempting to influence legislation. The Cotporation shall not participate in or intervene in
(including the piiblishing or distribution of statements with respect to) any political campaign on
behalf'of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

() It is intended that this Corporation  shall have the status of & corporation which is
exempt from fideral income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code as an organization described
in Section 501(¢)(3) and is other than & private foundation by reason of being described in Section




12710/ 2_91"2 1518

~

6029165995 FENNEMORE CRAIG #3

170(b)(1 HA)Gi) aisdfor S09(aX(1) or (2) of the Code. Thiese Aticles shall be vonstried accordingly,
and all powers and activities of the Corporation shall e imited accordingly. -

© ”Mh’wnﬂ a1y ofher pre o of these Aﬁ_ctes, th: otstion: shs

<amy oh any activities ot ‘ ‘ , Al
!ﬂx Pmposes under Sectxon l?D(c)&) ofthg
Cobe. o comesponding proviin °fﬂn¥ﬁ1m deral tax laws; (3) bequests, legacies, devises, and
trm:sfers to wh:ch are deductible for estale:tax purposes under Section 2055(a)2) of the Code o
- ' °T(4)glﬁslowh1chmdeducﬁbleforgiﬁ
orresponding provision of any future federal

v,
Board of Directors

ent Board of Directors consists of saven {7) directors, The number of directors and

their: lnanner”orf elécﬁon will be governed by the Bylaws. The names arid addresses of the persons
who-setve as thie directors are: "

Don Budinger Craig Barreit

11485 North 136™ Street, Suite 109 11485 North 136® Street, Suite 109
Scattsda]e,AZSSZSQ Scottsdals, AZ 85259
John' Morhan Clint Bolmk
11485 North 136" Street, Suite 109 11485 North 136™ Street, Suite 109
Scottsdale, AZ 85259 Scottsdale, AZ 85259
Terry Sarvas Michas] K, Block
11485 North 136™ Street, ‘Suite 100 11485 North 136™ Strect, Site 109
Scottsdale, AZ 85259 Stottsdale, AZ, 85259
SteveTwist
11485 North 136 Street, Sisite 109
Scottsdale; AZ 85259
Members
‘The Corporation shall have no members.
VL
Limitation of Liability

The personal liability of a director of the Corporation, or of a person who serves on & board

of council of the Corporation in an advisory capacity to the Corporation for money damages for any
action taken or any failure to take action as a director i is hereby eliminated 1o the fullest extent
permitted by Arizona law as it sow exists or heresfer may be amended. Any repeal or modification
of this provision shall be prospective only, and shall not affect adversely any Jimitation on the
peronal fiability of such person with respect to any act o omission occurring prior to the time of

such repeal 6r modification,

PAGE 85
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Indemnification

TotheﬁﬂlestextentpmnuedbyAmnalawasitnowexmarhmmermybemnded
. shall Y dimtm- oﬂieer qr apest of the Corpomﬂon ag_gmst all

8 and liahilities, meludmg-;ﬂﬁdm..__ > e ceéding, whe

cotinection withi any threatens inig. ted ag doeedin
¢riminal, administrative or inve gative, t‘onnai oF mfoma! to which he or she is orwas a [_‘"

is thraatenedto bemadaapanybymnofﬂlefemthath: or.she i3 or was a director, off
agenit of the Corporation or is orwmmngntthe‘jﬁg_, toftheCpxpomﬂonas adixeqwr, officer,
emplnyee,memberoragmtofmoﬂw orpora r other entity.  The fo  fights of
indemnification are limited as requiréd by Atizona law, butshnllbemaddmontomdnotexcluswe
ofalloftheﬂghtstowhichsuchpamnsmaybecnuﬂedatlaworothmvm .
nwdxﬁcahon of ihls Atticle shall b2 prospective only i not adve

1 rights of a ditector, oﬂimoragamofthe Corporation existi
repealormodlﬂcaho)n

Disnolution.

pon dis ‘he Corporstion, the Board of Dircetors, after making provision

-paymmt of all of the liabxlmes of the CﬁOn, shall arrange for the dlstu‘buuon of all of the
asgets of the Cmpommn exc}umvely for the tax-exemy t purposes of the Corporation, | by dmﬁibuﬁon

X ; org ’,andope:mdm:clusmly t‘orcbm&ble, educational, literary
or sclentific pmposes asshall al the time qualify as anemmptm nization ororgmnuﬁons under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or conespondmg provision of dny fiture federal tax laws; &5 the
Board of Directors shall determine, Any assets of the Corporation not so disposed of by the
foregoitip provisions shall be disposed of by the Superior Court of the County. in which the prinei
office of the Corporation is then locsted, exclusivelyfor the taic-exenipt purposes of the Co:poratwn
or to such. orgamzaﬂon Or organizations, as such Court shall determing, which are orga; -

operated exclusivaly for such) purposes.

1X,
Statutory Agent
The narme and address of the stanrtory agent is:
Tetry Sarvas, Sarvas, Coleman, Edgell and Tobin P.C., 5050 N. 40 Street, Suite 310,
Phoenix, AZ 85018-2153.

X
Fiscel Yenr

The flscal year for this Corporation shall be July 1 through June 30, unless otherwise
fixed by a molutwn of the Board of Directors.







'BYLAWS

OF

‘ BASIS SCHOOL, INC,
An Arizona Nonprofit Corporation



ARTICLE1 =
OFFICES AND CORPORATE SEAL

LL  Principal Office.  The principal office of the Basis School, Inc., an Arizona
nonprofit corporation (the “Corporation®) shall be its known place of business in Tucson, Atizona

1.2 Offices. The Corporation also may maintain offices at such other place or piaees,
either within or without the State of Arizona, as may be designed from time to time by the Board
of Directors and the business of the Corporation may be transacted and such other offices with

the same effect as that conducted at the principal office.
1.3  Corporate Seal. A corporate seal shall not be requisite to the validity of any

instrument exccuted by or on behalf of the Corporation, but one may be used if the officers or the
Board of Directors so decide.

ARTICLE 2
PURPOSES ,
2.1 Charitable Purposes, The purposes for which the Corporation is formed are

- those set forth in its Articles of Incorporation, initially being organized exclusively for

educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501 ( ¢) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, or the corresponding provisions of any future United States Internial Revenue Laws.

2.2 Schools; School Boards; Advisory Boards:
Among its activities, the Corporation will develop and operate one or more schools, either within
or without the State of Arizona. Each such school shall be provided with such means of oversight
and direction as the Corporation’s Board of Directots may presctibe from time to time, which
may include School Boards or advisory or oversight committees established and appointed by the
Board of Directors, and operating under such regulation of authorities and duties as the Board of
Directors may provide.

2.2.1 Arizong Charter Schools. For such of the schools as are charter schools
within the meaning of Arizona Revised Stafutes section 15-183, the foregoing provisions of this
section 2.2 are modified as follows: each such school holding a separate charter in Arizona shall
be provided with a separsite School Board consisting of not less than seven (7) voting members,
which School Board shall constitute the governing body for the charter school that is responsible
for the policy decisions of the charter school, within the meaning of A.R.S. 15-183, subd. E.8.

-Both voting and non-voting members of such School Boards shall be appointed by the

Corporation’s Board of Directors, for such terms and upon such conditions as the Directors may
establish; provided, however, that not more than three (3) of the voting members of any one such
School Board may simultaneously be members of the Corporation’s Board of Directors; and
provided further that, notwithstanding such terms and conditions, or other provisions as may be
adopted to regulate such School Boards by the Corporation’s - Board of Directors, each such



((w (

School Board shall retain the resi:onsibility for the policy decisions of its respective éharte_i- -
school within the meaning of A.R.S. 15-183, subd, E.8. Meetings of such School Boards shal] be
conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Arizona public meeting law; -

2.3  Dividends Prohibited . The Corporation is not formed for pecuniary or financig!
gain, and no part of the assets, income, or profit of the Corporation is distributable to, or will
inure to the benefit of, its directors or officers or other private individual; provided, however, that
nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent the payment of reasonable compensation
for services actually rendered by employees, officers or directors of the Corporation and
reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection therewith, - :

ARTICLE 3
MEMBERSHIP

The Cofporaﬁon will not have members,

ARTICLE 4

DIRECTORS

4.1  Number; Chairman. The board of directors shall consist of not less than three
(3) persons nor more than nine (9) persons as determined by the board. The directors may choose
from among their number a Chairman of the Board, who shall preside &t the meetings of the
board. ‘ ‘

4.2  Vacancies. Vacancies and newly created directorship resulting from any increase
in the authorized nuruber of directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of
remaining directors then in office, though not less that a quorum; or by a sole remaining director, .
and the directors so chosen shall hold office until the next annual election and until their
successors are duly elected and qualified, unless sooner replaced, If there are no directors in
office, then an election of directors may be held in the manner provided by statute,

43  Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its
Board of Directors. ' o :

44  Place of Meeting. The Board of Directors of the Corporation may hold meetings,
both regular, and speciel, either within or without the State of Arizona. Such may be held by.
mean of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all-
persons participation in the meeting can hear each other, and participation in & meeting pursuant
to this section shall constitute presence in person at such meeting,

45  Anpual Meeting. The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held
before July 1 or at such other date and time as shall be designated by the Board of Directors and



C o e et — —— —— —— - Ve e s e met e e e e r— e —— - - o bt e —

 stated in the notice of meeting. Notice to the current Board of Directors of each annual meetin'é .

_shall be given by the secretary by mail, telephone, e-mail or telegram and shall be given at least -
ten (10) days and not more than fifty (50) days prior to such meeting, At the annual meeting, the -
current Board of Directors shall elect successor directors who shall immediately assume duties 8BS

* directors.. No notice shall be necessary to the newly constituted Board of Directors in order for
* the meeting legally to constitute the annually meeting, provided that the quorum of the newly -
constructed Board of Directors shall be present, At its annual meeting, the newly constructed
~ Board of Directors shall elect the officers of the Corporation and may transact any other business,
which may properly come before it. If a quorum of the newly -constructed Board of Dirgctors is
not present, the annual meeting will be held as soon as practicable after the new directories are
clected.

4.6  Regular Meetings. Regular meetings or the Board of Directors may be held
without notice at such time and at such place as shall from time to time be determined by the
Board.

4.7  Special Meetings, Special meetings of the Board may be called by the president
or Chairmen of the Boerd or the secretary on ten (10) days notice to each director, either
personally, by e-mail, by mail, by telegram or by telephone. Special meetings shall be called by
the president or secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of any director,
The time and place of each special meeting shall be determined hy the president, but in the case
of meeting called upon the request of a director the time of such meeting shall be no later than the
expiration of a ten (10) day period following the date of such request or such longer period as
may be specified in the request. : '

48  Quorunmi. A majority of the membership of the Board of Directors shall constitute
a quorum and the concurrence of a majority of those present shall be sufficient to conduct the
business of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by the
Articles of Incorporation. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of the Board of
Directors, the directors then present may adjourn the meeting to another time or place, without a
notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

49  Action without Meeting. Unless otherwise restricted by the Articles of
Incorporation or these Bylaws, any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the
Board of Directors or of any committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if all members
of the board or committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and the writing or
writings are filed with the minutes of proceedings of the Board or committee.

410 Waiver Notice. Attendance by a director at a meeting shall constitute waiver of
notice of such meeting, except when the person attends the meeting for the express purpose of
objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or
convened. Any director may waive notice of any annual, regular or special meeting of directors
by executing a written notice of waiver either before or after the time of the meeting.

411 Compensation. The amount or rate of such compensation of members of the
Board of Directors or of committees shall be established by the Board of Directors and shall be
- set forth in the minutes of the board. : .



ARTICLES -

OFFICERS *

5.1 ' Designation of Titles. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen by the
Board of Directors and shall be a president, a secretary and a treasurer, The Board of Directors
also may choose one or more vice presidents, one or more -assistant secretaries and assistant
treasurers and an Executive Director, Any number of offices, except the offices of president and
secretary may be beld by the same person, unless the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws

. provide otherwise,

52  Appointment of Officers, The Board or Directors at each annual meeting shall
elect a president, a secretary and @ treasurer, each of whom shall serve at the pleasure of the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors at any time may appoint such other officers and
agents as it shall deem necessary to hold office at the pleasure of the Board of Ditectors and to
exercise such powers and performs such duties as shall be determined from time to time by the
board

53  Salaries The salaries of the officers shall be fixed from time to time by the Board

 of Direetors, and no officer shall be prevented form receiving such salary by reason of the fact

that he is also a director of the Corporation,

54 Term, The officers of the Corporation shall hold office untii their successors are
chosen and qualify on their stead. Any officer elected by the Board of directors may be removed
at any time by the board of directorsy,_If the office of any officer becomes vacant for any reason,
the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors,

5.5  President. The president shall function as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Corporation. He or she shall sign all deeds and conveyances, all contrects and agreements and all
other instruments requiring execution on the behalf of the Corporation, and shall act as operating
and directing head of the Corporation, and all of its constituent activities, including the operation
of BASIS schools, subject to the general management of the Corporation’s Board of Directors
and to policies, procedures, and limitations established by the Board of Directors in these by-laws
or otherwise. In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, the President shall preside at all
meetings of the Board of Directors.

5.6  Secretary, The secretary shall see that the minutes of all meetings of the Board of
Directors and of any standing committees are kept. He or she shall be the custodian of the
corporate seal and shall affix it to all proper instruments when deemed advisable by him or her or
when instructed by the Board. He or she shall give or cause to be given required notices of all
meetings of the Board of Directors. He or She shall have charge of all books and records of the
Corporation, except the books of account, and in general shall perform all duties incident to the
office of secretary of a corporation and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the
Board of Directors. ' .

3.7  Treasurer,. The treasurer shall have general custody of all the funds and securities
of the Corporation. He or she shall see to the deposit of the funds of the Corporation in such bank
or bariks as the Board of Directors. may designate. Regular books of account shall be kept under
his direction and supervision, and he or.she shall render financial statements to the president and



'Dirgctors‘ at proper times. The treastirer shall have 6harge of the preparation and filing of such . - -

reports, financial statements and returns as may be required by law, He or she shall give to the
Corporation such fidelity bond -as may be required by the Board and the premium paid by the
Corporation as an operating expense. He or she shall see that the Corporation properties are
adequately insured against liability.

ARTICLE 6

COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors may, by resolution pessed by a majority of the whole Board
designate one (1) or more committees, to consist of two (2) or more members of the Directors of
the Corporation. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the resolution, and as otherwise
restricted by law, shall have and may exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the
management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may authorize the seal of the
Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it; provided, however, that in the
absence of disqualification of any member of such committee or committees, the member or
members thereof present at any meeting not disqualified from voting, whether or not he or she or
they constitute a quorum, may unanimously appoint another of the Board of Directors to act at
the meeting in place of any such absent or disqualified member. Such committee or committees
shall have such name or names as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 7

NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

It shall be the policy of the Corporation and of any school operated by the Corporation
that such school shall admit students of any race, color, national, and ethnic origin to ail the
rights, privileges, programs, and activities generally accorded or made available to students at
such school. No school shafl-discriminate on the basis of race, color, national and ethnic origin in
administration of“its educational policies, admissions policies, scholarship and loan programs,
and athletic and other school- administered programs. The Corporation shall make its
nondiscrimination policy known to all segments of the general community served by the schools
at least annually, strictly in accordance with the broad dissemination standards as set forth by
relevant publication of the Internal Revenue Service:; and shall further strive to include notice of
its 'said policy in all brochures, catalogues and advertising dealing with student admissions,
program, and scholarships. The Corporation shall monitor compliance with said policy to ensure

-its application to the Corporation’s activities, and shall also keep tecords concerning the racial

composition of its student body, faculty, and staff, as well as its racially nondiscriminatory
policy, including records of the publication of that policy, in accordance with the requirements of

the Internal Revenue Service.



ARTICLE §

REPEAL ALTERATION OR AMENDMENT |
. These Bylaws may be repealed, altered or amended, or substitute Bylaws may be
adopted at any time, only by a majority of the board of directors.

Dated this April 27,2010



ounty Board of Supervisors




Charter Schools

BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
FY 2019 Q4 Statement of Financial Position
6/30/2019

Assets

Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Accounts Receivable
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabilities
‘Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Other Liabilities

$17,708,082

$41,502,632
$557,330

$27,537,076

- $87,305,120

$294,074,256
-$23,913,344
$270,160,912

$357,466,032

$27,502,576
$11,440,280
$38,942,856

$365,581,395

Total Non-Current Liabilities $365,581,395
Total Liabilities $404,524,251
Net Assets
Beginning Net Assets -$49,095,606
Net Surplus $2,037,387
Total Net Assets -$47,058,218
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $357,466,032

Page 2 of 2




FY 2019 Q1-Q4
Char'l'er SChOOIS FY 2019 School Budget FY2019 Q1-Q4 Actuals as %
Actuals
of Budget
Student Count 15,756 15,612 39%
State Revenue
State Aid $99,852,543 $100,101,634 100%
Classroom Site Fund $7,673,395 $7,452,517 97%
Instructional Improvement Fund $679,628 $654,478 96%
College Credit Incentive Fund $732,300 $1,051,924 144%
Results Based Funding 52,760,075 52,939,507 107%
Total State Revenue $111,697,941 $112,200,060 100%
Federal Revenue
Start-up Grant $250,000 $452,652 181%
Title Programs & SEIl Programs $101,976 588,851 87%
IDEA $1,347,581 $1,590,282 118%
Total Federal Revenue $1,699,557 52,131,785 125%
Local Revenue
Annual Teacher Fund $6,504,940 $5,055,064 78%
Other Donations/Intl. Student Program Rev, 573,800 $602,474 816%
Reimbursable Activities Revenue 510,054,827 $9,490,576 94%
Other Miscellaneous & Full Day K Revenue $5,437,440 $4,019,332 74%
Total Local Revenue $22,071,007 $19,167,446 87%
Total Revenue $135,468,505 $133,499,292 99%
Total Payroll $84,301,076 $84,212,532 100%
Other Expenses
SME-Student Driven $3,410,795 $2,815,604 83%
SME-Maintenance 54,013,341 $3,891,852 97%
Reimbursable Activities Expenses 54,168,256 54,413,468 106%
Sponsored Testing 5968,866 5831,697 86%
Insurance + Audit Fees $1,108,483 S855,483 77%
Internet $515,035 $416,924 81%
Hiring and Professional Development $1,816,447 51,282,987 71%
Other Expenses $1,564,110 $2,457,613 157%
Core Fee 52,407,642 51,444,067 60%
Debt Service $13,525,517 513,525,517 100%
Service Fees 514,698,529 $14,642,642 100%
Total Other Expenses . 548,197,020 546,577,854 97%
Total Expenses $132,498,095 $130,790,386 99%
Total Net Surplus before Dep. Amor. & Cap X $2,970,410 $2,708,306 91%
|BCSI Sub-grant to BBR on behalf of NSBR | $0 | ($671,519) | |
[Total Net Surplus before Dep. Amor. & Cap X | $2,970,410 | $2,037,387 | 69% |

Page 1 of 2



BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
Consolidated Financial Statements
and

Supplementary Information

Year Ended June 30, 2018
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of BASIS Charier Schools, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the Firm), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We did not audit the financial statements of BDC, a Public Charter School, Inc. (BDC) and BTX Schools,
Inc. (BTX), subsidiaries of the Firm, which statements reflect total assets constituting 2% of the
consolidated total assets, and total revenues and support constituting 21% of the consolidated total
revenues and support, as of and for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
BDC and BTX, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Address * 9019 East Bahia Drive Suite 100 » Scottsdale, AZ 85260 | Phone « (602) 264-3077 | Fax + (602) 265-6241



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BASIS
Charter Schools, Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Matters
Other Informaticn

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for the purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
praocedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31,
2019 on our consideration of the Firm’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Firm’s internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.

Fester « Cragman, PLLC.

January 31, 2019



BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2018

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from government
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses, current
Prepaid debt service
Restricted cash, current
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Prepaid expenses, noncurrent
Restricted cash, noncurrent
Property and equipment, net
Deposits
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued construction costs

Deferred revenue

Deposits held for others

Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net
Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
4

$  17,265236
3,733,607
507,157
2,301,028
4,405,001
18.506.100
46,718,129

2,589,593
56,048,342
249,047,070
380.490
308.065.495

$ 354,783,624

$ 13,549,011
15,195,665
1,766,905
2,333,730
4.405.001
37,250,312

361.354.588
398,604,900

(50,695,395)
6.874.119
(43.821.276)

$ 354.783.624




BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30,2018

Revenue and support:
State revenues
Federal revenues
Local revenues
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue and support

Expenses:
Primary and secondary education
General and administrative
Fundraising
Total expenses

Change in net assets (deficit) before unrealized loss and write-
off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties

Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties
Change in net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year
Net assets (deficit), end of year

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total
$ 120,517,024 $ 120,517,024
2,124,267 2,124,267

14,400,382 § 8,486,939 22,887,321
— 6923271 6.523.271

143,564,944 1,963,668 145,528,612
128,432,218 , 128,432,218
22,664,457 22,664,457
1,084,598 1,084,598
152.181.273 152,181,273
(8,616,329) 1,963,668 (6,652,661)
(5.015.513) (5.015.513)
(13,631,842) 1,963,668  (11,668,174)

(37.063.553) 4.910.451 (32.153.102)
§ (50,695.395) § 6.874,119 § (43.821.276)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets (deficit)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets (deficit)
to net cash provided by operating activities:

$ (11,668,174)

Depreciation 7,196,494
Amortization of loan issuance costs 745,775
Amortization of bond premium (172,656)
Gain on disposal of assets (132,094)
Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties 5,015,513

Changes in:
Due from government

(1,155,323)

Other receivables 61,546
Prepaid expenses 598,132
Deposits (352,061)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,523,200
Deferred revenue 313,297
Deposits held for others 205,211
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,178,860
Cash flows from investing activities:
Funds used for prepaid debt service (1,540,001)
Net deposits to restricted cash (39,820,567)
Purchases of property and equipment (52.118.159)
Net cash used in investing activities (93,478,727)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans 88,623,413
Principal payments on long-term debt (2.485.000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 86.138.413

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(1,161,454)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18.426.690

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year § 17.265.236

Supplemental disclosures

Cash paid during the year for interest expensed 3 13,305,063

Cash paid during the year for interest capitalized $ 2,178,649

Loan proceeds paid directly for prepaid interest and issuance costs $ 5,015,513
3 27,844,952

Loan proceeds paid directly to refinance outstanding loans payable

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. (the Firm), an Arizona not-for-profit organization, was formed in
fiscal year 1998-99. The Firm provides educational services to students in kindergarten through
twelfth grades. The Firm operates under charter contracts with the Arizona State Board for Charter
Schools, which mandates policy and operational guidelines. Each school operates under its
respective charter contract with the Arizona State Board for Charter Schools and is funded
primarily through State Equalization assistance. BDC, a Public Charter School, Inc. (BDC) is a
separate 501(c)(3) corporation established in the District of Columbia in fiscal year 2011-12,
whose sole member/owner is the Firm. BTX Schools, Inc. (BTX) is a separate 501(c)(3)
corporation established in Texas in fiscal year 2011-12, whose sole member/owner is the Firm.
BBR Schools, Inc. (BBR) is a separate 501(c)(3) corporation established in Louisiana in fiscal year
2016-17, whose sole member/owner is the Firm. To efficiently manage the schools, the Firm
entered into a management services agreement with BASIS Educational Group Inc. (BASIS.ed) on

June 25, 2009,
The Firm has campuses at the following locations:

First Year of Grades served

School Name Service in 2017-2018
BASIS School, Tucson Primary 1998-99 K-4
BASIS School, Scottsdale 2003-04 4-12
BASIS School, Oro Valley 2010-11 6-12
BASIS School, Chandler 2011-12 5-12
BASIS School, Flagstaff 2011-12 3-12
BASIS School, Peoria 2011-12 - 5-12
BASIS School, Tucson Notth 2012-13 5-12
BASIS School, Phoenix 2012-13 5-12
BASIS School, Ahwatukee 2013-14 4-12
BASIS School, Mesa 2013-14 3-12
BASIS School, Oro Valley Primary 2014-15 K-5
BASIS School, Prescott 2014-15 K-12
BASIS School, Phoenix Central 2014-15 K-8
BASIS School, Chandler Primary South 2015-16 K-4
BASIS School, Goodyear 2015-16 6-10
BASIS School, Goodyear Primary 2015-16 K-5
BASIS School, Scottsdale Primary 2015-16 K-3
BASIS School, Chandler Primary North 2016-17 K-4
BASIS School, Peoria Primary 2017-18 K-4
BASIS School, Phoenix South Primary 2017-18 K-2
BDC 2012-13 5-12
BTX (3 schools) 2013-14 K-12



BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

The significant accounting policies of the Firm are as follows:

Principles of Consolidation: Generally accepted accounting principles require the Firm to
consolidate entities in which it has control and an economic interest when that control is evidenced
through majority ownership or voting interests. The Firm is the sole member/owner of BDC, BTX,
and BBR, therefore consolidation is required. The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Firm, BDC, BTX, and BBR. During the year ended June 30, 2018, BBR did not
have any financial activity. All significant inter-organization balances and transactions have been

eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation: Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the
Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) topic of
Not-for-Profit Entities. The Firm is required to report information regarding its financial position
and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted
net assets, and permanently restricted net assets. The Firm does not have any permanently
restricted net assets at June 30, 2018.

Use of Estimates: In preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Contributions: The Firm follows the FASB ASC subtopic of Revenue Recognition for Not-for-
Profit Entities. Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or
permanently restricted support based on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions. All
donor restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a donor restriction expires,
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions (see Note 6).

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The Firm considers all highly liquid investments with initial
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE | - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -
Continued

Due from Government: Due from government consists mainly of state approved payments to the
Firm to operate the charter schools and federal grants passed through the State of Arizona. The
Firm has never experienced any losses due to non-payment, expects none on the June 30, 2018
balances, and therefore has not established an allowance for uncollectibility.

Other Receivables: Other receivables consists of miscellaneous receivables due to the Firm that
will be collected during the fiscal year subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Prepaid Expenses: Prepaid expenses consists of goods and/or services purchased before June 30,
2018 that are to be used subsequent to June 30, 2018.

Loan Issuance Costs: Loan issuance costs and origination fees are deferred and amortized over the
term of the associated loans and are included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as an offset to the related debt (see Note 5). During the year ended June 30, 2018, $731,707 of loan
issuance costs were written off as part of debt refinancing.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment with an initial cost of $300 or more and an
estimated life of one year or more are capitalized. In addition, textbooks are always capitalized and
considered a separate asset class. Assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization is
provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the respective

assets:
Buildings and improvements 40 years
Vehicles, furniture and equipment 3-5 years
Textbooks 3 years
Software . 3 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of the estimated useful life or

remaining term of applicable lease

Deferred Revenue: Deferred revenue represents amounts collected but not earned as of June 30,
2018.

Deposits Held For Others: Deposits held for others consists of student deposits required for the use
of textbooks.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $534,004 for the year ended
June 30, 2018.



BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

Continued

Expense Allocation: The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis in the consolidated statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes: The Firm and its subsidiaries are exempt from federal and state income taxes as an
organization other than a private foundation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and similar state provisions.

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH

Restricied cash consists of required deposits associated with the long-term debt (see Note 5). The
tax and insurance funds shail be used to pay real property taxes and premiums for the required
insurance policies. The debt service reserve funds shall be used if the Firm is unable to make
payments when due. The project funds shall be used to complete construction on the new
campuses and furnishings and renovations to existing campuses. The bond funds shall be used to
pay the interest coming due. The accounts are held by Bank of Arizona as trustee.

Restricted cash as of June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Debt service reserve funds $ 22,903,245
Repair and replacement funds 48,377
Tax and insurance funds 2,729
Project funds 46,740,762
Bond funds 4.859.329

Total : $ 74,554,442

NOTE 3 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Firm maintains its unrestricted cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions,
which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, such cash and
cash equivalents may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits. The Firm has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and management believes it is not exposed to any significant risks related
to these accounts,
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment at June 30, 2018 consists of the following:

Land and improvements
Buildings and leasehold improvements
Vehicles, furniture and equipment
Textbooks
Software
Construction in progress

Total

Less accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

Depreciation for the year ended June 30, 2018 totaled $7,196,494.

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30, 2018:

$1,725,250 promissory note payable to the City of Goodyear dated December
23, 2014. The loan matures over 30 years at an interest rate of 3.26%. Annual
interest only payments of $54,613 are due through December 2024, and annual
principal and interest payments of $114,125 start in January 2025. The note
matures in December 2044. The loan was used to purchase real property for
BASIS Goodyear and BASIS Goodyear Primary and is secured by a deed of trust

on real property.

11

$ 53,512,734
155,616,117
12,163,090

46.287.299
274,051,839
25,004,765

249.047.070

$

1,675,250



BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2015A) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona in the aggregate
principal amount of $89,140,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated March 1, 2015. The loan matures over
30 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and
interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$370,000 to a maximum of $5,650,000 commencing on July 1, 2016, The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance and
refinance the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various
campuses, (ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide
security for the Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the Bonds,
and (iv) pay certain issuance expenses related to the Bonds. The loan is secured
by BASIS Chandler, Flagstaff, Goodyear, Goodyear Primary, Oro Valley,
Peoria, Phoenix, Scottsdale, Tucson North, and Tucson Primary {the Obligated
Schools'), and all subsequent entrants into the Obligated Group's revenue
received from the State of Arizona under the Obligated Schools charters, and a
deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated Schools sites. These
Bonds were sold at a premium of $1,341,705, which is included in the
unamortized net premium. 87,200,000

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2016A) were issued by the Industrial
Development Authority of the City of Phoenix, Arizona in the aggregate
principal amount of $84,160,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated January 1, 2016, The loan matures over
30 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and
interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$690,000 to a maximum of $11,110,000, commencing on July 1, 2017, The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance and
refinance the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various
campuses, (ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide
security for the Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the Bonds,
and (iv) pay certain issuance expenses related to the Bonds. The loan is secured
by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received from the
State of Arizona and the District of Columbia under the Obligated Schools
charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated Schools
sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are BASIS DC, BASIS
Chandler Primary North, Oro Valley Primary, and Scottsdale Primary These
Bonds were sold at a premium of $1,097,887, which is included in the
unamortized net premium. 83,470,000
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017A and 2017B) were issued by
the Arizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount
of $75,960,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated February 1, 2017. The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 4.00% and 5.375%. Annual principal and interest
payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of $225,000 to a
maximum of $10,460,000, commencing on July 1, 2017. The loan proceeds
were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance and refinance
the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various campuses,
(ii) fund a portion of a debt service reserve fund that will provide security for the
Bonds, (iii) pay capitalized interest on a portion of the Bonds, and (iv) pay
certain issuance expenses related to the Bonds. The loan is secured by the
existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received from the State of
Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of Texas under the Obligated
Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the Obligated
Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are BASIS Chandler
Primary South, Peoria Primary, Phoenix Central, Phoenix South Primary,
Prescott, and San Antonio North Central. These Bonds were sold at a discount of
$227,672, which is included in the unamortized net premium/discount, 75,735,000

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017C, 2017D, and 2017E) were
issued by the Arizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate
principal amount of $43,715,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the
Firm pursuant to a loan agreement, dated October 1, 2017. The loan matures
over 34 years with interest rates between 3.00% and 5.25%. Annual principal
and interest payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of
$155,000 to a maximum of $14,365,000, commencing on July 1, 2018. The loan
proceeds were used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the
costs of acquiring, constructing, improving and equipping various campuses, (ii)
pay capitalized interest on a portion of the bonds, (iii) fund all or a portion of the
Debt Service Reserve Funds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. The
loan is secured by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue
received from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of
Texas under the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property
located at the Obligated Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated
Group are BASIS Ahwatukee and San Antonio Shaveno. These Bonds were
sold at a premium of $1,415,975, which is included in the unamortized net .
premium/discount. 43,715,000
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2017F and 2017G) were issued by the
Arizona Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount of
$57,455,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated December 1, 2017. The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 3.00% and 5.00%. Annual principal and interest payments
vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of $110,000 to a maximum
of $3,405,000, commencing on July 1, 2018, The loan proceeds were used by the
Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the costs of acquiring,
constructing, improving and equipping various campuses, (ii) pay capitalized
interested on a portion of the Bonds, (iii )fund all or a portion of the Debt
Service Reserve Funds, and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. The loan
is secured by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received
from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, and the State of Texas under
the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on real property located at the
Obligated Schools sites. The newest members of the Obligated Group are
BASIS Mesa, Phoenix Primary, and San Antonio Medical Center. These Bonds
were sold at a premium of $5,054,153 which is included in the unamortized net
premium/discount. 57,455,000

Education Revenue Bonds (BASIS, Series 2018A) were issued by the Arizona
Industrial Development Authority in the aggregate principal amount of
$16,295,000. The proceeds of the bonds were loaned to the Firm pursuant to a
loan agreement, dated March 1, 2018. The loan matures over 34 years with
interest rates between 6.00% and 6.375%. Annual principal and interest
payments vary, and principal payments range from a minimum of $440,000 to a
maximum of $1,365,000, commencing on July 1, 2024. The loan proceeds were
used by the Firm for the following purposes: to (i) finance the costs of acquiring,
constructing, improving and equipping, as applicable the Baton Rouge campus
(if) pay capitalized interested on the bonds (iii ) fund a portion of the Debt
Service Reserve Fund and (iv) pay the costs of issuance of the bonds. The loan is
secured by the existing and newly entered Obligated Schools revenue received
from the State of Arizona, the District of Columbia, the State of Texas, and the
State of Louisiana under the Obligated Schools charters, and a deed of trust on
real property located at the Obligated Schools sites. The newest member of the
Obligated Group is BASIS Baton Rouge. These Bonds were sold at a discount of
$235,254 which is included in the unamortized net premium/discount. 16,295,000
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued

The Firm has an unsecured $500,000 line of credit with Wells Fargo Bank, of
which $500,000 was outstanding at June 30, 2018. The line of credit agreement

is subject to annual renewal. Interest is payable monthly at 6.75%. 500,000
Total 366,045,250
Plus unamortized net premium/discount 8,121,147
Less unamortized loan issuance costs 8,406,808
Less current maturities 4,405,001
$361,354.588
The aggregate future minimum payments on long-term debt as of June 30, 2018, are as follows:
Year ending June 30: |

2019 $ 4,405,001

2020 4,180,000

2021 4,390,000

2022 5,125,000

2023 5,290,000

Thereafter 342.655.249

366,045,250

Plus unamortized net premium/discount 8,121,147

Less unamortized loan issuance costs 8.406.808

$365.759,589

Under the loan agreements, the Firm is required to comply with certain financial covenants. At
June 30, 2018 the Firm was in compliance with those covenants.

NOTE 6 - TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

The Firm received temporarily restricted contributions totaling $8,486,939, and disbursed
$6,523,271 from these contributions during the year ended June 30, 2018, for extracurricular
activities and the Annual Teacher Fund.

At June 30, 2018, $6,874,119 remained in net assets temporarily restricted for the Annual Teacher
Fund,
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BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

Approximately 65% of the Firm's revenue for the year ended June 30, 2018 was derived from the
State of Arizona through payments of State Equalization, Classroom Site Funds (Proposition 301),
State of Arizona grants, and federal grants passed through the State of Arizona. Non-federal funds
that are paid from the State of Arizona are subject to funding approval from the state legislature.
Changes in state funding levels for charter schools could have a significant impact on the Firm's

revenues.

Approximately 60% of the Firm's total expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018 were paid to
BASIS.ed for leased employee costs and approximately 11% were paid to BASIS.ed for
management services fees.

NOTE 8 - OPERATING LEASES

The Firm entered into leases for some of its school sites under the provisions of long-term lease
agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expense under these leases was $88,000 for the
year ended June 30, 2018. Future minimum operating lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2019 $ 662,026
2020 858,065
2021 : ‘ 858,065
2022 566,865
2023 566,865
Thereafter 14,738,490

$ 18.250.376
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BASIS Charter Scheols, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Compliance: The Firm's compliance with certain laws and regulations is subject to review by the
State of Arizona, Office of the Auditor General and Department of Education. Such reviews could
result in adjustments or withholding of State Equalization assistance.

Commitments: The Firm has entered into agreements with BASIS.ed to provide charter school
management, teaching services and administrative services for each of its schools, with various
expiration dates through June 30, 2020. Under terms of the management agreement with
BASIS.ed, the Firm incurred $91,399,292 for leased employee costs and $16,704,331 in
management services fees, which comprise of three services categories including management
services, operational services, and financial services. The fees are based on revenues and are
adjusted for cost-of-living and growth in revenues in subsequent years.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the Firm began construction and renovations to
various campuses. As of June 30, 2018, the Firm had $46,287,299 in construction in progress
related to these campuses, with remaining commitments of approximately $11,000,000 to
complete the projects.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Firm has evaluated subsequent events through January 31, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued, and has concluded that no events have occurred since the
year ended June 30, 2018 that would require an adjustment to or disclosure in the financial

statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due fram government
Due from related party
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Prepaid debt service
Resiricted cash, current
Total current assets

Neoncurrent assets:
Prepaid expenges, noncutrent
Restricted cash, noncwrrent
Property and equipment, net
Deposits
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

Current lighilities;
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued construction costs
Deferred revenue
Due to related party
Deposits held for others
Current maturities of long-ter debt
Total current linbilities

Long-term debt, net
Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Unresiricted (deficit)
Temporarily restricted
Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assels (deficit)

BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC,
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018
BSI BDC BTX Eliminations Totals
5 13,838,740 $ 1,584,320 $ 1,842,176 § 17,265,236
1,134,39} 80,867 2,518,343 3,733,607
341,111 [ (G4L111)
406,680 71,363 29,114 507,157
2,186,892 11,885 102,251 2,301,028
4,405,001 4,405,001
18,506,100 18.506.100
40,818,915 1,748,435 4,491,890 (G4L,111) 46,718,125
2,589,593 2,589,593
56,048,342 56,048,342
248,131,293 482,104 433,673 249,047,070
334,115 1,375 45,000 380,480
307,103,343 483,479 1I8673 308,065 495
$ 347922258 § 2231914 § 4970,563 3§ (4L § 354,783,624
$ 11,982,601 % 308720 § 1,257,690 s 13,549,011
15,195,665 15,195,665
1,755,068 11,837 1,766,905
309,104 32,006 3§ (341,111
2,324,970 8,760 2,333,730
4.405.001 4,405,001
35,663,305 629,662 1,298,456 (31,111} 37,250,312
361,354,588 361,354,588
397,017,893 629,662 1,298,456 (G4LEL1) 398,604,900
(55,336,497 1,401,824 3,239,278 (50,695,395)
6,240,862 200,428 432829 6.874.119
(49,095 ,635) 1.602.252 3672107 {43,821 276)
$ 347922258 3 2231914 § 4970563 $ (341.111) § 354,783,624

See independent auditors' report.
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Revenue and support:
State revenues
Federal revenues
Local revenues
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue and support

Expenses:
Primary and secondary education
General and administrative
Fundrajging
Tolal expenses

Change in net assets {deficit) befare unrealized loss and write-
off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penaltics

Write-off of loan issuance costs and prepayment penalties
Change in net assets (deficit)

Net sssets (deficit), beginning of year
Net assets {deficit), end of year

BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2018
BSI BDIC
Temporarily Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Subtotal Unrestricted Restricted Subtotal

M 93,452,882 $ 93,452,882 % 9,290,797 £ 9,290,797
1,738,689 1,738,689 150,671 150,671
15,733,501 § 7,645,929 23,379,430 289,188 3 148,283 437471

5829191 {5.829.191} 110,125 (110,129}
116,754,263 1,816,738 118,571,001 9,840,785 38,154 9,878,939
105,569,491 105,569,491 8,213,197 8,913,197
19,354,586 19,354,586 637,756 631,756
952,524 952,524 61,199 61.199
125 B76 601 125 876,601 9612152 9612152
(9,122,338) 1,816,738 (7,305,500) 228,633 38,154 266,787

(5,015,513) (5,015,513}

(14,137.851} 1,816,738 (12,321,113) 228,633 38,134 266,787
{41,198.646) 4424.124 {36.774.522) 1173.191 162274 1,335,465
3 {55336497) § 6240862 § (49,095.635) § 1401,824 § 200428 3 1,602,252

See independent auditors' report.
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Revenue and support;
State revenues
Federal revenues
Local revenues
Net assets released from restrictions
Total revenue and support

Expenses:
Primery and secondary educaticn
General and administrative
Fundraising

Total expenses

Change in net assets (deficit) before
unrealized loss and write-off of loan
issuance cosls end prepayment penalties

‘Write-off of loan issuance ¢osts and
prepayment penaltiea

Change it net assets (deficit)

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year
Net assets {deficit), end of year

BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2018
{(CONTINUED)
BIX Eliminations Totsl
Tempomrily Temporerily
Unrestricted Restricted otal Total Unrestrigted Restricted Total

$ 17,773,345 g 17,773,345 $ 120,517,024 2 120,517,024
234,907 234,907 2,124,267 2,124,267
2,113,579 § 692,727 2,806,306 § (3,735,386} 14,400,382 § 8,486,939 22,887,321

58395 {583,951} 53523271 {6,523 271)
20,705,782 108,776 20,814,558 (3,735,886) 143,564,944 1,963,668 145528612
17,010,775 17,010,775 (3,061,245) 128,432,218 128,432,218
3,346,756 3,346,756 (674,641) 22,664,457 22,664,457
70,875 70,875 1,084,598 1084598
20,428 406 20.428 406 (3,735 BB6) 152.181.273 152 188273
277,376 108,776 386,152 (8,616,329} 1,963,668 (6,652,661)
{5,013.513) (5,015.513)
277376 108,776 386,152 {13,631,842) 1,963,668 (11,668,174}
2,961.902 324,053 3.285 955 {37.063.553) 4,910,451 (32,153,102)
3 3239278 § 432,829 § 3672,107 § 3 (50,695,395 § 6874119 § !43!821i276l

See independent auditors' report.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
OBLIGATED GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2018

Obligated
Group (Existing
Members)!
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 17,169,659
Other current assets 7.025.695
Total current assets 24,195,354
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net 249,047,070
Other noncurrent assets 77.693.568
Total noncurrent assets 326.740.638
Total assets $ 350,935,992
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 24,912,222
Other current liabilities 8.891.254
Total current liabilities 33,803,476
Long-term debt | 361.023.266
Total liabilities 394,826,742
Net assets (deficit) (43.890.750)

Total liabilities and net assets (deficit) $ 350,935.992

(1)Represents the results of the Pledged Schools financed as part of the Series 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018
Bonds.

See independent auditors' report.
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BASIS CHARTER SCHOOLS, INC.
OBLIGATED GROUP STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Obligated Non Total Obligated
Group (Existing  Eliminating  Group (Existing
Members)! Ttems Members)!
Revenues:
State revenues $ 120,517,025 $ 120,517,025
Federal revenues 2,045,924 2,045,924
Local revenues 21447755 $§  2.377.552 23.825.307
Total revenue and support _ 144,010,704 2,377,552 146,388,256
Expenses:
Salaries and payroll 90,984,349 90,984,349
Management fees 16,704,331 16,704,331
Other operating 21,290,243 2,377,552 23,667,795
Depreciation 7,187,212 7,187,212
Bond interest and amortization 14.463.115 14.463.115
Total expenses 150.629.250 2.377.552 153,006,802
Change in net assets (deficit) before non-recurring (6,618,546) ' (6,618,546)
expenses
Non-recurring expenses? (5.015.513) (5.015.513)
Change in net assets (deficit) (11,634,059) (11,634,059)
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year (32.256.691) (32.256.691)
Net assets (deficit), end of year $ (43.890.750) $ $ (43,890,750)

(1)Represents the results of the Pledged Schools financed as part of the Series 2015, 2016, 2017, and 2018

Bonds.
(2)Non-recurring expenses reflect non-cash expensing of certain debt issuance and refunding prepayment

penalties related to the issuance of the 2017 and 2018 Bonds.

See independent auditors' report.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of BASIS
Charter Schools, Inc. (the Firm), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 31, 2019. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the
financial statements of BDC, a Public Charter School, Inc. and BTX Schools, Inc., as described in our
report on the Firm’s consolidated financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other
auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are

reported on separately by those auditors.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the Firm's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Firm’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with

governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Firm's consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of consolidated financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fester « Crovan, PLLC

January 31, 2019
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance For Each Major Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; Report on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Directors of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
Scottsdale, Arizona

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.'s (the Firm) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the Firm's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. The Firm's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of the auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Firm’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Firm’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Firm’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Firm complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2018.
3
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Firm is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Firm's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Firm's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,

material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Firm as of and for the year ended June 30,
2018, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2019, which contained an unmodified opinion
on those consolidated financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance
and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Fester « om.(mm PLLC.

January 31, 2019



BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2018
Pass-
Through Passed
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Grantor's Through to
Program Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through Arizona Department of Education
Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program (SBP) 10.553 Various b3 11,867 §
National School Lunch Program (NSLP) 10.555 Various 66,477
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 78,344
Total U.S. Depariment of Agriculture 78.344
1.S. Department of Education
Passed through Arizona Department of Education
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Varjous 77,658
Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 Various 1,367,598
Total Special Education Cluster 1,367,598
Charter Schools 84.282 Various 209,392
English Language Acquisition State Grants 84.365 Various 5,238
Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants
(formerly Improving Teacher Quality State Grants) 84.367 Various 460
Total U.S. Department of Education 1.660.346

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to this schedule.

$§ 1738690 §




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
BASIS Charter Schools, Inc. (the Firm), and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the consolidated

financial statements.
NOTE 2 - CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE (CFDA) NUMBERS

The program titles and CFDA numbers were obtained from the 2018 Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance Update.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

The Firm has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance,

NOTE 4 - SUBRECIPIENTS

The Firm did not pass any funds onto subrecipients during the year ended June 30, 2018.



BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of Auditors' Report issued: Unmeodified
Yes No
Material weaknesses identified in internal control over financial reporting? X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? X (None reported)
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? X
Federal Awards
Material weakness identified in internal contro] over major programs? X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? X (None reported)
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? X
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
84.027 Special Education_Grants to States
84.282 Charter Schools
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X
Other Matters:
Auditee's Summary Schedule of Prior Findings required to be reported in
X

accordance with 2 CFR 200.511(b)?




BASIS Charter Schools, Inc.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2018

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were identified that were required to be reported.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

No matters were identified that were required to be reported.
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